
 
CDRPA Meeting Agenda Aprilh13th, 2021 Page 1 of 2 

 
  

                   
Working Together to Enhance the Economic Vitality of North Central Washington 

 
 

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 
Meeting Agenda 
April 13th, 2021 

9:00 am 
 
 

In order to maximize social distancing related to COVID-19, the meeting 
 will be held at the CTC and remotely using Zoom Virtual Conference. 

 
   

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
*Note: When the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority meeting is called to order, the Port of Chelan 
County and Port of Douglas County meetings are simultaneously called to order. 

  
II. INTRODUCTIONS 
 
III. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
IV. CONSENT AGENDAS 
 

CDRPA: Approval of Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Minutes of March 23rd, 2021 
Meeting; Approval of Tri Commission Meeting Minutes of March 30th, 2021; Check Register 
Pages #2021-09-#2021-11 including electronic transfers; and CDRPA Resolution No. 2021-
07 voiding check #7775 
 
POCC: Approval of Port of Chelan County Check Register Page #2021-04 
 

V. PRESENTATIONS 
• Synergy Food Solutions – New IB#2 Tenant  

 
VI. CDRPA ACTION ITEMS   

(1) City of Wenatchee Request to Help Fund Federal Lobbyist 
(2) CDRPA Resolution No. 2021-08 Adopting Policies & Procedures to Implement Design 

Build Contracting 
(3) CDRPA Resolution No. 2021-09 Adopting Small Works & Contractor Services Roster 

Development Policy 
(4) CDRPA Resolution No. 2021-10 Adopting Purchasing & Contracting Policy 
(5) First Right to Negotiate – Mission Peak Computing/Pangborn Business Park 
(6) Bid Award - CWICC Building Carpet Replacement Project   

 
VII. CDRPA INFORMATIONAL ITEMS (Board may take action on any items listed)  

(7) Review Lineage South Proposals 
• Restoration 1 
• Precision Water Jet / Todd Davidson 

(8) FAA CARES Act – Project Allocation Suggestions 
(9) Tenant Lead – IB#3 (Former Port of Chelan County Offices)  
(10) Cashmere Mill District – Beaver Mitigation 

 
 
 
 



 
CDRPA Meeting Agenda Aprilh13th, 2021 Page 2 of 2 

 
 

 
VIII. MISCELLANEOUS STAFF REPORTS 

• CEO 
• Director of Finance & Administration 
• Director of Airports 
• Director of Economic & Business Development 
• Public Works & Capital Projects Manager 
• Property & Maintenance Manager 
• CTC Manager 

 
IX. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
X. REVIEW CALENDAR OF EVENTS 

 
XI. ITEMS FROM BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
XII. EXECUTIVE SESSION: An Executive Session may be called during the meeting.  The purpose 

must be announced and is limited by RCW 42.30.110.  Examples include: (1) to discuss with legal 
counsel litigation, potential litigation and/or legal risks (RCW 42.30.110(1)(i)); (2) to consider the 
acquisition of real estate by lease or purchase when public knowledge regarding such consideration 
would cause a likelihood of increased price (RCW 42.30.110(1)(b)); and (3) to consider the 
minimum price at which real estate will be offered for sale or lease when public knowledge regarding 
such consideration would cause a likelihood of decreased price (final action selling or leasing public 
property shall be taken in a meeting open to the public)(RCW 42.30.110(1)(c)); and (4) to evaluate 
the qualifications of an applicant for public employment or to review the performance of a public 
employee(RCW 42.30.110(1)(g)) 

 
XIII. ADJOURN 

 
PLEASE NOTE:  The agenda is tentative only. The Board of Directors may add, delete, or postpone items and may take 
action on any item not on the agenda. The Directors may also move agenda items during the meeting. 
If you wish to address the Regional Port Authority on a non-agenda or an agenda item, please raise your hand to be 
recognized by the President.  When you have been recognized, give your name and address before your comments. 
The Board of Directors are committed to maintaining a meeting atmosphere of mutual respect and speakers are 
encouraged to honor this principal. 

 
The Port Authority office is ADA compliant. Please contact the Administrative Office at 509-884-4700 at least three (3) 
days in advance if you need any language, hearing or physical accommodation.  



 March 23rd, 2021 Page 1 of 5  

 

             
    
            

            Board of Directors 
 Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 

   Meeting Minutes 
  March 23rd, 2021 

9:00 am 
 
Present:  Directors    
 JC Baldwin, Director    Jim Huffman, Director   
 Rory Turner, Director    W. Alan Loebsack, Director   
 Donn Etherington, Director        Mark Spurgeon, Director   
  
 Staff 
 Jim Kuntz, Chief Executive Officer   Monica Lough, Dir. of Finance & Admin.  
 Trent Moyers, Director of Airports  Ron Russ, Property Manager  
 Ron Cridlebaugh, Dir. of Economic Dev.   Craig Larsen, Econ. Dev. Manager   
 Tricia Degnan, CTC Manager (Zoom)  Cami Harris, Executive Assistant  
 Quentin Batjer, Legal Counsel   Bealinda Tidd, Accounting Specialist (Zoom) 
 Sarah Deenik, Communications Coordinator (Zoom) Laura Camarillo Reyes, CTC Asst. (Zoom) 
 Esther McKivor, Accounting Specialist (Zoom)  Randy Asplund, Port Engineer (Zoom)   
         
 Guests   

Ray Dobbs (Zoom)  Mayor Bob Goedde, City of Chelan (Zoom) 
Erin McCardle, City of Chelan (Zoom)  Lenka Slapnicka, Forte Architects  
Erik Howe, RH2 (Zoom)  Ellyn Freed, Forte Architects 
Eric Hovee, Consultant  David Hulse, Alcoa (Zoom) 

 Kenneth Johannssen (Zoom)  Eagle Group (Zoom) 
   
 
 
The Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority (CDRPA) Meeting was called to order 
at 9:00 am. Due to the COVID-19 virus outbreak, the meeting was held at 
Confluence Technology Center and via Zoom as previously posted in the required 
Public Meeting Notice. 
 
Introductions were made. 
 
Conflict of Interest: None 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
CDRPA CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
The Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Consent Agenda consisting of minutes of March 
9th, 2021 Meeting; and February 2021 Commission Meeting Calendar was presented and the 
following action was taken:  
 

 
Motion No.  03-12-21 CDRPA 

  Moved by:    JC Baldwin 
  Seconded by:  Mark Spurgeon 

To approve the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Consent Agenda 
consisting of Minutes of March 9th

, 2021 Meeting; and February 2021 
Commission Meeting Calendar, as presented. 
 
     Motion passed 6-0. 
 
 
     



 March 23rd, 2021 Page 2 of 5  

 
 
 
PRESENTATIONS: 
 
Forte Architects – Lenka Slapnicka, Ellyn Freed, and Eric Hovee provided design concepts 
and costs for the potential adaptive reuse of the Giga Watt pods. Kuntz provided further  
analysis including re-investment limitations and financial summary of the project. The project 
is not financially feasible without securing large grants to offset the construction costs. 
Discussions ensued. Staff will work to develop a plan to analyze the cost of removing the Giga 
Watt pods. 
 
2021 FAA Inspection – Moyers reviewed the results of the recent 2021 FAA inspection of 
Pangborn Airport operations.  The Airport received a positive review. The report provided a 
few comments: 

• Install signage at the old self-serve fuel pump noting it is out of service and remove 
any outdated signs. 

• Purchase additional snow removal equipment. 
• The ARFF facility needs repairs. 
• Suggest having dedicated fire operations and dedicated maintenance operations if 

possible. 
    Discussions ensued. 

  
 
CDRPA ACTION ITEMS: 

 
Settlement Agreement – Christina Nulf/CAN Management, LLC – Kuntz provided an 
update on the proposed settlement agreement with CAN Management. Ms. Nulf has agreed to 
pay the Regional Port $5,000 to settle the claim for default on her previous Concessionaire 
Agreement with the Port of Douglas County at Orondo River Park. Discussion ensued and the 
following action was taken:    
 

Motion No.  03-13-21 CDRPA 
  Moved by:    Rory Turner 
  Seconded by:  Mark Spurgeon 

To authorize the CEO to sign a Settlement Agreement with Christina 
Nulf/CAN Management, LLC. 
        
     Motion passed 6-0. 
 

 
CDRPA Resolution No. 2021-06 – Relocation Assistance – Kuntz presented CDRPA 
Resolution No. 2021-06 adopting a policy governing relocation assistance payments and 
relocation assistance procedures as part of the Airport Approach Lighting System Project. The 
following action was taken:   
 

Motion No.  03-14-21 CDRPA 
  Moved by:    JC Baldwin 
  Seconded by:  Jim Huffman 

To adopt CDRPA Resolution No. 2021-06 concerning Relocation 
Assistance Payments and Adopting Relocation Assistance Procedures. 
        
     Motion passed 6-0. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 March 23rd, 2021 Page 3 of 5  

 
 
Historic Downtown Chelan Association Partners in Economic Development Grant – 
Kuntz reviewed the Historic Downtown Chelan Association’s new Partners in Economic 
Development grant submittal. The grant request is for the Regional Port to fund an event that 
engages the Hispanic community in Downtown Chelan. Erin McCardle, Historic Downtown 
Chelan Association, provided further details on the event which is planned for November. 
Discussion ensued and the following action was taken:  

 
 
Motion No.  03-15-21 CDRPA 

  Moved by:    Rory Turner 
  Seconded by:  Mark Spurgeon 

To award the Historic Downtown Chelan Association a Partners in 
Economic Development Grant in the amount of $10,000. 
 
     Motion passed 6-0. 

 
 
 
USFS – CWICC Building Carpet Replacement Project – Russ provided an update on the 
CWICC Building carpet. The lease with the USFS states the carpet must be replaced every 10 
years, and it has never been replaced. Staff recommends seeking bids for the carpet 
replacement project, with an overall total budget amount of $32,000. The following action 
was taken: 

 
Motion No.  03-16-21 CDRPA 

  Moved by:    Mark Spurgeon 
  Seconded by:  JC Baldwin 

To authorize the CEO to solicit bids for CWICC Building Carpet 
Replacement Project. 
     Motion passed 6-0. 
 
 
 

Chelan Douglas Transportation Council – Amended Interlocal Governance Agreement to 
Include Colville Tribes – Kuntz reviewed the first amendment to the Chelan Douglas 
Transportation Council Interlocal Governance Agreement to include Confederated Tribes of the 
Colville Nation as a voting member of the Council. The following action was taken:  
 

Motion No.  03-17-21 CDRPA 
  Moved by:    Donn Etherington 
  Seconded by:  JC Baldwin 

To approve the First Amendment to the Chelan Douglas Transportation 
Council Interlocal Governance Agreement and authorize execution of the 
same. 
     Motion passed 6-0. 

 
 
Director Loebsack called for a 5-minute break at 10:55 am. Meeting resumed at 
11:00 am. 
 
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 

• Chelan Airport Update – Kuntz provided several updates on the Chelan Airport 
including:  

o Chelan Airport Master Plan Blue Ribbon Panel upcoming meeting dates are April 
7 and April 21. 

o Update on recent meeting with Chelan Mayor Bob Goedde, and various state 
agencies concerning a proposed waterline extension project to the Chelan 
Airport.  

 
 
 
 
 



 March 23rd, 2021 Page 4 of 5  

 
 
• Waterville Airport Update – Kuntz provided several updates on the Waterville 

Airport including:  
o Reviewed zoning for the Waterville Airport. 
o Johnson Building environmental testing of the soil will commence after the 

snow melts. 
o Chip Sealing Project update – Mayor of Waterville may utilize the same 

contractor that the Regional Port is using for the runway pavement project for 
several downtown street projects. 

o Barnes Welding lease update. 
 

 
• Lineage South – Kuntz reviewed the four Regional Port goals for Lineage South 

Buildings including:  
o Private Sector Investment. 
o New Job Creation. 
o Get Property back on City Tax Roles. 
o Invest in Exterior Architecture.  

     Larsen then provided an update on several parties interested in purchasing the 
property. Discussion ensued. 

 
 

• Proposed Water Tower Near Pangborn Airport – Kuntz & Moyers reviewed the 
City of East Wenatchee’s proposed water tower near Pangborn. The initial findings by 
the FAA was that the tower would interfere with navigable airspace. However, after 
further study, as requested by the City of East Wenatchee Water District, the decision 
was reversed. The FAA has now concluded the proposed tower poses no interference.   

  
 

• Funding Opportunities – Kuntz reviewed several funding opportunities for the 
Regional Port Authority for various Port properties and projects, including:  

o .09% Chelan County Sales Tax 
o Congresswoman Schreir’s 2022 Community Project Funding 
o State Capital Budget 
 

 
MISC STAFF REPORTS: 
 

 Kuntz provided information and updates including:  
• Business lead updates for Malaga Industrial Park. 
• RV overnight parking situation in Olds Station has improved. 
• Salcido Enterprises lawsuit. 

 
 Lough provided information and updates including:  

• Update on Chelan Valley Marine. 
 
 Moyers provided information and updates including: 

•  Authorization to purchase a Jet A fuel truck will be brought to the Board at an 
upcoming meeting. 

•  FAA reported any AIP funded projects in 2021 will not be subject to a local match. 
•  Jake and Trent both passed their recent weather observation exams. 

 
 Larsen provided information and updates including:  

•  Update on prospective tenant for IB#2. 
•  Louws Truss is expanding their operations in Cashmere. Will increase employees from 

33 to 40-45. 
•  Working Washington 4 Small Business Grant Program – will be managed by the State, 

but the Regional Port will invest in some local advertising to provide information to 
businesses in the region. 



 March 23rd, 2021 Page 5 of 5  

 
 

•  Crunch Pak is building a new two story office building in Cashmere. 
•  New apartment complex is being constructed south of Brender Creek in Cashmere.  

 
 De Mestre provided information and updates including:  

• Forte was recently chosen to design the Executive Flight Commission Meeting Room 
Project. 

• Holiday Parks and N. Cascade Heating & Cooling are working on the HVAC 
Replacement Project design for the CWICC Building. 

• CTC Window Sealant Project bids are due today. 
• Orondo Riverpark trailer demolition is underway. 

 
 Russ provided information and updates including:  

• Update on the current beaver issue at Cashmere Mill District in Brender Creek. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – An opportunity for public comment was provided; however, no public 
comments were received. 
 
 

REVIEW CALENDAR OF EVENTS: Tri Commission Meeting is scheduled for March 30th, at 
1:00pm via Zoom.  
 
ITEMS FROM BOARD OF DIRECTORS: Directors provided various updates on their meetings 
and activities. 
 
 
Meeting adjourned at 12:52 pm. 
   
 
Signed and dated this 13th day of April, 2021. 
 
 
CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY 
 
 
  
  
  _________________________________ 
JC Baldwin, Director     Jim Huffman, Director 
 
          
     ________________________________ 
Donn Etherington, Director    Mark Spurgeon, Director 
 
 
___________________________________  _________________________________ 
Rory Turner, Director     W. Alan Loebsack, Director 



 March 30th,  2021 Page 1 of 2 

 
          
       

                 Tri-Commission Meeting 
             Special Meeting Minutes 

       Zoom Virtual Conference 
        March 30th, 2021 1:00 pm 

   
Present:  Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Chelan County PUD 
 JC Baldwin, Commissioner Randy Smith, Commissioner 
 Rory Turner, Commissioner Garry Arsenault, Commissioner 
 Jim Huffman, Commissioner Dennis Bolz, Commissioner 
 Mark Spurgeon, Commissioner Ann Congdon, Commissioner 
 Donn Etherington, Commissioner Steve McKenna, Commissioner 
 Jim Kuntz, CEO  Steve Wright, General Manager 
 Cami Harris, Executive Assistant Chad Rissman, Director of Info/Asset Mgt.  
   Justin Erickson, Managing Director Dist. Svcs. 
 Chelan County Shaun Seaman, Ex. Affairs Program Mgr. 
 Kevin Overbay, Commissioner Rachel Hansen, Sr. Communications Strategist 
 Bob Bugert, Commissioner Chad Bowman, Director of Transmissions 
 Tiffany Gehring, Commissioner Ron Slabaugh, Water/Wastewater Mgr. 
 Blake Baldwin, Economic Dev. Director Andy Wendell, Director of Customer Svc. 
 Mike Kaputa, Dir. Of Natural Resources Teka Sellars, Spokesperson 
 Carlye Baity, Clerk of the Board Rebekah Garfein, Clerk of the Board 
  
 Mayors         
                        Bob Goedde, City of Chelan 
 Frank Kuntz, City of Wenatchee 

                     Jim Fletcher, City of Cashmere 
  Carl Florea, City of Leavenworth           

                                             
           Others 
            Wade Farris, City of Chelan   Jerrilea Crawford, Mayor City of E. Wenatchee 
           Laura Merrill, City of Wenatchee  Linda Haglund, Wenatchee Downtown Assoc. 
           Steve Keene, Peshastin Com. Council  Jefferson Robbins, NCWLife 
           Kelli Scott, Congresswoman Schrier Staff Shiloh Burgess, Wenatchee Valley Chamber 
           Sasha Sieman, Wenatchee Valley Chamber   
 
The Tri Commission Meeting and respective Special Commission Meetings were called to order 
and/or reconvened at 1:02 pm. The Pledge of Allegiance was conducted and roll call was 
taken. Justin Erickson, Chelan County PUD, facilitated the meeting. 
 

 
TRI-COMMISSION UPDATES:  
 

• Chelan County Commission  
o Update on Chelan County water bank. 
o Reviewed new Chelan County water code which becomes effective on April 1. 
 

• Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 
o Reviewed COVID-19 small business grants administered by the Regional Port in 

2020. 
o Reviewed Douglas County PUD power delivery rate proposal and the impacts on 

economic development in Douglas County.   
o Update on current business leads for Chelan and Douglas Counties. 

 
• Chelan County PUD 

o Update on pre-emptive power shut-off plan during wildfires. 
o Reviewed long-term PUD marketing strategy. 
o Update on a 2nd water source in Chelan County. 
 

 
 



 March 30th,  2021 Page 2 of 2 

 
 
2021 LEGISLATIVE UPDATES: 
 

• Reviewed proposed bills concerning forest health/wildfire management and broadband 
and telecom. 

• Update on Dryden wastewater Capital Budget request. 
• Reviewed the American Rescue Plan and potential projects for funding in Chelan 

County. 
 
CHELAN COUNTY MAYORS UPDATE: 
 

•  City of Wenatchee – Mayor Kuntz 
o Reported on the recent INFRA Grant submittal for Confluence Parkway. 
o 1/10 sales tax increase recently approved. 
 

• City of Chelan – Mayor Goedde 
o Update on COVID-19 impacts on the City of Chelan tourism. 
 

• City of Cashmere – Mayor Fletcher 
o Reported affordable housing continues to be an issue. 
 

• City of Leavenworth – Mayor Florea 
o Update on COVID-19 impacts on City of Leavenworth tourism; the downtown 

“Pedestrian Mall” remains open and closed to cars/parking. 
 
 

OTHER: 
Blake Baldwin provided an update on Chelan County .09 sales tax and impacts for economic 
development in the County. 
 
OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT:  No comments were made. 
 
COMMISSIONER COMMENTS: Several Commissioners offered comments. 
 
 
The Tri Commission Meeting and respective Special Commission Meetings were 
closed at 2:58 pm. 
 
Signed and dated this 13th day of April, 2021. 
 
 
CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY 
  
 
______________________________                     _____________________________ 
JC Baldwin, Director Jim Huffman, Director 
 
 
______________________________                     _____________________________  
Rory Turner, Director                                             Mark Spurgeon, Director 
 
 
___ ___________________________                    Not in Attendance_______________ 
Donn Etherington, Director   W. Alan Loebsack, Director  





















____________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2021-07 Voiding Check #7775 Page 1 of 1 
 

CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY 
 RESOLUTION NO. 2021-07 

 
RESOLUTION TO VOID CHECK NO. 7775 

 

 

Whereas Check No. 7775 in the amount of $215.00, payable to Mike Holder, on 
Register Page No. 2021-04 was created and signed on January 31, 2021. 

Whereas check was not received by payee and has not cleared the Chelan Douglas 
Regional Port Authority main checking account, and is considered to be lost in the mail at 
this time.  Check #8028 is being issued as a replacement. 

Now, therefore be it resolved by the Board of Directors of the Chelan Douglas 
Regional Port Authority, a municipal corporation of the State of Washington, that Check No. 
7775 be declared VOID. 

 

Dated this 13th day of April, 2021. 

 

CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY 
 

 

_____________________________   ______________________________ 
JC Baldwin, Director     Jim Huffman, Director 
 
 
_____________________________   ______________________________ 
Donn Etherington, Director    Mark Spurgeon, Director 
 
 
_____________________________   ______________________________ 
Rory Turner, Director     W. Alan Loebsack, Director 
 

 









Chelan Douglas Regional 
Port Authority 

 

Memo 
To: Board of Directors  

From: Stacie de Mestre 

cc: Jim Kuntz 

Date: April 8, 2021 

Re: CDRPA Purchasing and Contracting Policy and Resolutions 

 
The Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority does not have an 
inclusive policy pertaining to purchasing and contracting.  Staff has 
worked with Davis Arneil to create the attached policy.  This policy: 

- Defines the required level of competition based on 
purchase/contract size 

- References and interprets relevant RCW sections  
- Establishes reasonable thresholds and processes when 

statutory requirements do not provide guidance 
- Identifies roles and responsibilities for all relevant staff 

Please note, there are no statutory requirements on bid limits and 
level of competitive solicitation for Purchased Services and Other 
Purchases.  The Board will need to determine what limits are 
reasonable.  This will be reviewed in more detail at Tuesday’s 
meeting. 
 
Along with this new policy, staff is asking the Board to adopt the 
policies and procedures for design-build contracting that the Port of 
Chelan previously adopted. 



 
Staff is also proposing to develop and maintain small works and 
consulting services rosters in house.  The MRSC rosters were 
previously utilized however, it has been increasingly difficult to find 
local contractors who are registered on the MRSC.  
 
Since the design-build resolution will be incorporated into and the 
resolution adopting the small works and consulting services roster 
process is referenced in the Purchasing and Contracting Policy, Legal 
recommended that the two resolutions be adopted prior to the policy 
being adopted.    
 
 



_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2021-08 Adopting Design Build Process Page 1 of 7 
 

 
CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-08 
 

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES TO IMPLEMENT  
DESIGN-BUILD CONTRACTING FOR PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS 

  
The Port District enabling statute (Chapter 53 of the Revised Code of Washington) was 
passed in 1912.  Since 1912, the authorizing statute provides two options to Port Districts 
for bid based contracting.  
 
The first option provides authority to award a contract to the lowest responsible bidder 
“upon plans and specifications on file.” Option one is the traditional “design-bid-build” 
process in which the Port designs the project before bidding and contracting for the 
construction of the project.  
 
The Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority (the “Port”) is also authorized under RCW 
53.08.130 to award a contract to a bidder submitting their own plans and specifications.  In 
other words, the second option is a “design-build” process that authorizes the Port to award 
a contract to a party that agrees to both design and build the project.   
 
This specific authorization to award a design-build contract contained in RCW 53.08.130 
has not been limited or changed by other statutory contracting authority. Specifically, the 
Alternative Public Works Contracting Process of RCW 39.10 states, “…unless otherwise 
specifically provided for in law, public bodies may use only those alternative public works 
contracting procedures specifically authorized in this chapter…” Because Port Districts, and 
select other public entities, have authority to utilize a design-build process “otherwise 
specifically provided for in law,” Port Districts are not bound by the alternative public works 
contracting procedures and requirements of RCW 39.10.  
 
The Port’s authority outside of RCW 39.10 to pursue “design-build” projects was more 
clearly stated in a past version of the law: “The authority granted to port districts in this 
section is in addition to and does not affect existing contracting authority under RCW 
53.08.120 and 53.08.130.” RCW 39.10.050, amended by 1997, ch. 376, § 3. 
 
The Final Bill Report for the 1997 amendment (SHB 1425) explains: 

 
The vast majority of public works projects use the traditional 
design-bid-build contracting method. Comparatively, design-
build has been used to only a limited extent in Washington. 
Under explicit statutory authority, port districts have used design-
build for over two decades to construct industrial buildings and 
equipment…. During the 1994 legislative session, a consortium 
of state agencies and local governments requested that the use 
of GC/CM be expanded to other agencies and that design-build 
be explicitly authorized in statute for agencies other than ports. 
 
SHB 1425-Final House Bill Report, C 376, Leg. 97 (emphasis added).  



_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2021-08 Adopting Design Build Process Page 2 of 7 
 

 
Although the express language identifying the separate authority of Port Districts was 
removed from the statute, currently there is no statutory mandate that Port Districts use the 
Alternative Public Works Contracting Process of RCW 39.10 in order to award design-build 
contracts. 
 
The design-build contracting process has many potential benefits not achievable with the 
traditional design-bid-build method.   The phases of design, advertisement, award, 
construction and completion of the design-build method offer potential savings in time over 
the design-bid-build method.  Additional potential benefits of design-build include: cost 
savings, improved quality without sacrificing schedule and budget, creativity arising from 
multiple potential viewpoints, use of current construction and design means and methods, 
and improved coordination of efforts. 
 
It is anticipated that the design-build process will save the Port time and money and ensure 
the use of innovative design and construction techniques.  
 
In light of the foregoing, the Board of Directors for the Chelan Douglas Regional Port 
Authority hereby resolve and establish the following policies and procedures to 
implement the Design Build authority: 
  
Section 1: Design Build Procedures 
 
Compliance with Public Works Laws.  All design-build contracting by the Port will follow the 
requirements for Public Works contracting contained in RCW 39.04 and the supplemental 
processes and methods presented in this Resolution for projects utilizing the design-build 
contracting process.    
 
Compliance with Prevailing Wage Laws.  All public works projects of the Port will comply 
with the Prevailing Wage requirements of RCW 39.12 regardless of the contracting process 
utilized.  
 
Design-Build Project Development. The Commission shall consider the use of the design-
build contracting process when a project is authorized. The Commission shall consider the 
potential benefits to the Port, as well as the ability of the process to be implemented in an 
open and fair process based on objective and equitable project-based criteria.  
 
The proposal for use of the design-build process should outline the project specific 
information accounting for costs and resources required to develop, implement, and support 
the process. When necessary, aspects of quality assessment and quality control, document 
control, consultant support, co-location support, or legal support should be identified. 
 
Contracts for design-build services shall be awarded through a competitive process using 
public solicitation of proposals for design-build services. The award of all design-build 
projects shall be based on two foundational elements: Value and Technical Design. 
Together these two elements define the standard for selecting “the best bidder submitting 
his or her own plans and specifications.” 
 



_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2021-08 Adopting Design Build Process Page 3 of 7 
 

Design Build Committee. The Port Commission may establish a Design Build Committee for 
purposes of overseeing all aspects of the Design-Build process and making 
recommendations to the Commission (the “Committee”).  The Committee shall be made up 
of individuals who have knowledge, training, or experience pertinent to the project.  The 
Committee may include the Engineer of Record and/or the Architect of Record for the Port.  
The composition of the Committee will be determined at the time the design-build process is 
identified for a particular project.   Alternatively, in the absence of a creation of a Committee, 
the Executive Director will oversee all aspects of the Design-Build process and make 
recommendations to the Commission (references in this Resolution to the “Committee” shall 
also include the Executive Director when a Committee is not created for a particular design-
build project). 
 
Letters of Interest. As an initial step, the Port may publish a Letter of Interest prior to the 
filing of an approved project plan in order to communicate to industry professionals the 
preliminary concept for a project.  This communication effort is intended to inform industry 
experts and professionals of the Port’s intent, and it establishes a process and opportunity 
for the Port and industry to begin to exchange information, gain understanding, and 
measure industry interest.    
 
Project Scope and Estimate:  Prior to pursuing the design-build process set forth below, the 
Committee shall describe the project in reasonable detail and establish an estimate of the 
costs of the project.  The project description and estimate shall be presented to the Port 
Commission for approval, and if approved the project description and estimate shall be 
placed on file for public inspection. 
 
Request for Qualifications (RFQ). The RFQ process is the first phase of a two-phase 
procurement process and is used to identify interested and qualified parties.  The RFQ 
typically includes, at a minimum, the following elements: 
 

a. A general description of the project that provides sufficient information for 
proposers to submit qualifications; 

b. The reasons for using the design-build procedure, including identification of 
the project characteristics that will be most informative in evaluating the 
proposer’s qualifications; 

c. A description of the required qualifications of the proposer; and 
d. A description of the evaluation process for proposers’ qualifications and 

finalists' proposals, including evaluation factors and the relative weight of 
factors and any specific forms to be used by the proposers. 

 
Because the design-build process will often be used in order to best utilize the technical and 
design skills of a design-build team, RFQs prepared for design-build projects should 
articulate those unique, innovative, technical, or complex aspects of the project that will be 
weighed along with a parties’ experience and expertise. The required qualifications shall be 
developed in order to best determine the proposer’s fitness and ability to achieve the design 
and technical requirements demanded by the Project. An RFQ shall request information 
about a proposer’s experience that can be evaluated in an objective manner.  Responses 
will then be evaluated using the criteria, also identified in the RFQ. Specific requests for 
information may be included in the RFP if that information will be useful in determining a 



_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2021-08 Adopting Design Build Process Page 4 of 7 
 

proposer’s qualifications. Examples of specifically requested information include, but are not 
limited to: 
 
• Capabilities; ability to meet timeline 
• Experience; prior design build projects 
• Past performances 
• Current work load on specific issues 

pertinent to the design-build project 
• Project team organization, 
• Key project team members 
• Minimum qualification requirements for 

key members 

• Key member resume 
• Quality control approach 
• Construction team member safety 

records 
• Approach and understanding of the 

project  
• Legal and Financial disclosure 

 
The evaluation and scoring methods shall be disclosed in the RFQ. The RFQ is intended to 
allow the proposers to demonstrate their strengths, and permit the Committee to determine 
which of the design-build-teams are the most highly qualified.   
 
Statement of Qualifications. Parties interested in participating in the design-build contracting 
process shall respond to a published RFQ with a Statement of Qualification (SOQ.)  The 
SOQ must include all of the required information identified in the RFQ and should generally 
provide information to the Port identifying: 
 

a. Qualifications  
b. The Key personnel 
c. Information of the submitter’s technical approach 
d. Other information required by the RFQ 

 
SOQs may be limited in length, as set forth in the RFQ, and focus on the applicants’ 
experience with those design and technical features specifically identified in the RFQ as 
aspects of the design-build project.  
 
Evaluation of Qualifications and Short-Listing. Each SOQ will be evaluated using the criteria 
identified in the RFQ. The RFQ evaluation criteria shall, whenever possible, prioritize the 
objective characteristics and experience of parties in determining qualification for a project. 

Criteria shall be selected in order to develop and maintain a level and uniform playing field. 
In addition to creating a uniform and fair selection process, the evaluation criteria shall focus 
on specialized capabilities required for the project.  The actual criteria selected for use shall 
be applicable to the project and demonstrate the parties’ ability to perform the work. 
Individual criteria shall be weighted according to their relative importance to the successful 
completion of the project.  Evaluation factors for RFQs typically include, but are not be 
limited to:  
 

a. technical qualifications, such as specialized experience and technical 
competence;  

b. capability to perform;  
c. past performance of the proposer’s team, including the architect-engineer and 

construction members; and 



_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2021-08 Adopting Design Build Process Page 5 of 7 
 

d. the proposer's past performance in utilization of small business entities and 
disadvantaged business enterprises.  

 
Examples of additional commonly used criteria include, but are not limited to: 
 
• Individual experience of team 

members with Design-Build 
contracting 

• Corporate experience with Design-
Build contracting  

• Experience in the execution of fast-
track projects  

• History of the proposed team working 
together  

• Specialized design capability for the 
key project elements  

• Specialized construction capability for 
the key project elements  

• Experience with complex construction 
staging, traffic control, or site 
conditions  

• Safety record  
• Staff available (Project Manager, 

Design Manager, Construction 
Superintendent, Quality Manager, etc.)  

• Quality performance  

• Quality assurance/Quality control 
organization  

• Bonding record or proof of bonding 
ability  

• Past performance on awarded 
contracts (completion, liquidated 
damages, quality, claims, fines, 
schedule adherence)  

• Financial capacity  
• Experience with formal partnering 

activities  
• Experience in similar types of work.  
• History of performance 

(unsubstantiated claims, fines, suits, 
quality, accuracy,    schedule)  

• Understanding of local environment  
• Resource capacity and availability  
• Scheduling and control systems to 

track and manage project  
• Specialized expertise that reduces risk 

and assures quality of work
 
Cost or price-related factors are not evaluated in the request for qualifications phase.  The 
Committee shall recommend (short list) the qualified parties submitting SOQs to the Port 
Commission.  If approved, then the identified parties shall be invited to respond to the RFP 
process outlined below.  
 
Request for Proposals. The Request for Proposals (RFP) is the second phase of the two-
phase procurement process for design-build proposals. The RFP should be issued as soon 
as practicable.  
 
Proposals submitted in response to an RFP shall be in two parts: (i) Technical Design; and 
(ii) Price Proposal.  The Technical Design shall respond to all information requested and 
requirements in the RFP.  The Price Proposal shall include a price for the completed 
project, and a price for any individual project aspects or phases specified in the RFP, if any. 
 
The Committee may elect to evaluate the Technical Design and Price Proposal separately 
(e.g. only after the Technical Design evaluation is completed will the Port open the Price 
Proposal). Evaluation factors for finalists' proposals typically include, but are not be limited 
to, the factors utilized in the RFQ evaluation, as well as: 
 

a. technical approach design concept;  
b. ability of professional personnel;  



_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2021-08 Adopting Design Build Process Page 6 of 7 
 

c. past performance on similar projects;  
d. ability to meet time and budget requirements;  
e. ability to provide a performance and payment bond for the project;  
f. recent, current, and projected workloads of the submitter;  
g. location; and  
h. cost or price-related factors that may include operating costs.  

 
The Port may also consider a proposer's outreach plan to include small business entities 
and disadvantaged business enterprises as subcontractor and suppliers for the project. If 
the Port determines that all finalists will be capable of producing a design that adequately 
meets project requirements, the Port may award the contract to the party that submits the 
responsive proposal with the lowest price. 
 
Awarding of Design-Build Projects. The award of all design-build projects must be based on 
the “best bidder” standard contained in RCW 53.08.130. The Committee shall recommend 
to the Port Commission one party for the project.  If approved, then the Port shall provide a 
notice of award and proceed with the customary contracting and bonding requirements 
necessary for commencement of the project. The selection of a proposal shall be 
announced by written notice to the selected party.  The Port shall also, at the same time, 
send the other parties a written notice that their proposals were not selected.  Upon award 
of the contract, the bidder is solely responsible for the completion of the design necessary 
for obtaining any and all requisite permits at his or her sole cost. 
 
Limitations; Rejections.  All submittals must be received by the date and time stated in the 
RFQ or in the RFP. Proposals submitted after the submission deadline, or incomplete 
proposals will not be considered by the Design Build Committee. At all times the Port 
reserves the right to reject all proposals.   
 

Section 2. Any prior Resolution(s) of the Port in related to design-build procedures 
are hereby repealed.   
  
 Section 3. If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Resolution should be 
held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or 
unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other section, 
sentence, clause, or phrase of this Resolution. 
 
 Section 4. This Resolution shall be effective upon passage by the Board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2021-08 Adopting Design Build Process Page 7 of 7 
 

ADOPTED by the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Board of Directors at a 
regular meeting thereof held on this 13th day of April, 2021. 
 
 
CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY 
 
 
_____________________________  ___________________________ 
JC Baldwin, Director    Jim Huffman, Director 
 
 
_____________________________  ___________________________ 
Donn Etherington, Director    Mark Spurgeon, Director 
 
 
_____________________________  ___________________________ 
Rory Turner, Director    W. Alan Loebsack, Director 
 



_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2021-09 Small Works & Consulting Services Roster Page 1 of 3 
 

CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-09 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY 

ADOPTING SMALL WORKS ROSTER DEVELOPED AND MAINTAINED BY PORT 
STAFF; AND ADOPTING CONSULTING SERVICES ROSTER MAINTAINED BY PORT 
STAFF FOR PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES INCLUDING ARCHITECTS 

AND ENGINEERS  
 
Whereas, RCW 39.04.155, and other laws regarding contracting for public works by 

municipalities, allow certain contracts to be awarded by a small works roster process; and  
 
Whereas, Chapter 39.80 RCW, and other laws regarding contracting for consulting 

services by municipalities, allow certain contracts for professional consulting services to be 
awarded by a consultant roster process; and  

 
Whereas, in order to implement small works and consulting roster processes, the 

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority (“Port”) is required by law to adopt a resolution 
establishing specific procedures related to the same; and 

 
Whereas, the Port now desires to adopt procedures related to small works projects 

as set forth in this Resolution, NOW, THEREFORE,  
 

THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL 
PORT AUTHORITY HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:  
 
 Section 1.  Adoption of in house Small Works and Professional Consulting 
Services Rosters.  The Board of Commissioners (“Board”) of the Port  wishes to manage 
and use in house Small Works and Professional Consulting Services Rosters. 
 
 Section 2.  Small Public Works Roster.  The following small works roster 
procedures  are established for use by the Port pursuant to RCW 39.04.155:  
 

1. Small Works.  Small Works are contracts for construction, building, 
renovation, remodeling, alteration, repair, or improvement of real property which the 
estimated cost is $300,000 or less, which includes the cost of labor, material, equipment 
and sales and/or use taxes as applicable. The Port need not comply with formal sealed 
bidding procedures for Small Works. Instead, the Port may use the Small Works Roster 
procedures for public works projects. 

2. Publication.   At least once a year, the Port shall publish in a newspaper of 
general circulation within the Port’s jurisdiction a notice of the existence of the Small Works 
Roster and solicit the names of contractors for such roster. Responsible contractors shall be 
added to roster at any time that they complete the online application, submit the necessary 
documents, and meet the State requirements for roster listing.  

3. Purchasing and Contracting Policy.  Specific policies and procedures for 
the use of the Small Works Roster and contracting for small public works projects are 



_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2021-09 Small Works & Consulting Services Roster Page 2 of 3 
 

outlined in the Port’s Purchasing and Contracting Policy adopted contemporaneously 
herewith by Port Resolution No. 2021-10. 

 
4. Reservation of Rights.   Nothing in this Resolution prohibits the Port from 

using a Formal Solicitation for projects of any value when appropriate.  
 
 Section 3. Consulting Services Roster. The following consulting services roster 
procedures are established for use by the Port: 
 

1. Consulting Services. Consulting Services are professional services that 
have a primarily intellectual output or product and include architectural and engineering 
services as defined in RCW 39.80.020. The Port, when appropriate, may use the Consulting 
Services Roster to select a professional services firm based on its Statement of 
Qualifications and the Port’s established criteria.  
 

2. Publication.  At least once a year, the Port shall, publish in a newspaper of 
general circulation within the Port’s jurisdiction a notice of the existence of the consulting 
services roster and solicit the names of consultants for the consulting services roster. The 
Port shall add responsible consultants to the consulting services roster at any time that a 
consultant completes the online application, submits a Statement of Qualifications, and 
meets minimum State requirements for roster listing.   

3. Purchasing and Contracting Policy.  Specific policies and procedures for 
the use of the Consulting Services Roster and contracting for Professional Consulting 
Services are outlined in the Port’s Purchasing and Contracting Policy adopted 
contemporaneously herewith by Port Resolution No. 2021-10. 
 

4. Reservation of Rights.   Nothing in this Resolution prohibits the Port from 
using any alternative procedures set forth in RCW 39.80.030 to solicit and enter into 
contracts for consulting services. 
 

Section 4. Any prior Resolution(s) of the Port in conflict with the policies and 
provisions established and set forth in this Resolution are hereby repealed.   
 
 Section 5. If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Resolution should be 
held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or 
unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other section, 
sentence, clause, or phrase of this Resolution. 
 
 Section 6. This Resolution shall be effective upon passage by the Board. 
 
 
  

 

 



_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2021-09 Small Works & Consulting Services Roster Page 3 of 3 
 

ADOPTED by the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Board of Directors at a regular 
meeting thereof held this 13th day of April, 2021. 

 

CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY 

 

 

_____________________________  ___________________________ 
JC Baldwin, Director    Jim Huffman, Director 
 
 
_____________________________  ___________________________ 
Donn Etherington, Director    Mark Spurgeon, Director 
 
 
_____________________________  ___________________________ 
Rory Turner, Director    W. Alan Loebsack, Director 
 

 

 

 

 



_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2021-10 Adopting Purchasing and Contracting Policy Page 1 of 2 

CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY 
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-10 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL 

PORT AUTHORITY ADOPTING PURCHASING & 
CONTRACTING POLICY ESTABLISHING GUIDELINES FOR 

THE ACQUISITION OF EQUIPMENT, MATERIALS, 
SERVICES, PROFESSIONAL & PERSONAL SERVICES, 

AND PUBLIC WORKS 
 

 
 Whereas, state and other laws regarding contracting and purchasing by 
municipalities require competitive bidding when contracts are above certain dollar 
thresholds to encourage fairness, open competition, and efficiency; and 
 
 Whereas, under those thresholds, municipalities have varying degrees of flexibility 
in establishing purchasing and contracting procedures; and  
 
 Whereas, the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority (“Port”) now desires to 
establish guidelines, responsibilities and procedures to be followed by the Port in acquiring 
equipment, materials and services to accomplish its overall mission as set forth in this 
Resolution, NOW, THEREFORE,  
 
 THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL 
PORT AUTHORITY HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1.  Adoption of Purchasing and Contracting Policy. The Port desires 
to adopt for the Port use the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Purchasing and 
Contracting Policy. The Purchasing and Contracting Policy are attached to this Resolution 
as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference.  
 
 Section 2. If any section, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Resolution should be 
held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or 
unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other section, 
sentence, clause, or phrase of this Resolution. 
 
 Section 3. This Resolution shall be effective upon passage by the Board. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2021-10 Adopting Purchasing and Contracting Policy Page 2 of 2 

ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority at a 
regular meeting thereof held this 13th day of April, 2021. 
 

CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY 

 

 

_____________________________  _____________________________ 
JC Baldwin, Director     Jim Huffman, Director 
 
 
_____________________________  _____________________________ 
Donn Etherington, Director    Mark Spurgeon, Director 
 
 
_____________________________  _____________________________ 
Rory Turner, Director    W. Alan Loebsack, Director 



1 
 

 

 
 
 

Purchasing and Contracting Policy 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Effective April 13, 2021 



2 
 

PURCHASING AND CONTRACTING POLICY ESTABLISHING GUIDELINES FOR THE 
ACQUISITION OF EQUIPMENT, MATERIALS, SERVICES, PROFESSIONAL & PERSONAL 
SERVICES, AND PUBLIC WORKS FOR THE CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT 
AUTHORITY. 

 

POLICY:  The Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority (the “Port”) will acquire equipment, 
materials, services and public works in a manner that is consistent with statutory 
provisions of the Revised Code of Washington (“RCW”) and in accordance with Port 
Resolutions, resulting in the most effective delivery of goods and services considering not 
only cost but value received. 

PURPOSE:  The purpose of this Policy is to establish guidelines, responsibilities and 
practices to be followed by the Port in acquiring equipment, materials and services to 
accomplish its overall mission. The guidelines set forth in this Policy are intended to assure 
compliance with state and federal laws and develop a uniform purchasing and contracting 
system. This Policy does not provide additional legal rights to parties not otherwise 
provided by law.  

AUTHORITY:  The authority to establish and from time to time amend the Policy and 
guidelines rests with the Chief Executive Officer of the Port through the “Delegation of 
Authority” Resolution, approved and adopted annually by the Board of Directors of the 
Port. 

SUPERSEDES:  This Policy supersedes and replaces all pervious policies and resolutions 
adopted by the Port, or it predecessors, relating to purchasing and contracting 
guidelines, except those policies and resolutions explicitly incorporated herein, including 
the Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Federal Procurement Standards Policy, and 
those policies and resolutions adopted contemporaneously herewith.  

 

 

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 

 

______     _________________ 

Jim Kuntz, Chief Executive Officer 

  



3 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1. Definitions 
 

2. General Guidelines for Purchasing  
 

2.1.  Individual Authority 
2.2.   Local Preference 
2.3.  Conflicts of Interest 
2.4.  Availability of Funds 
2.5.  Capital Purchases and Projects 
2.6.  Emergency Purchases 
2.7.  Contract Log 
2.8.  Length of Contracts 
2.9.  Insurance Requirements 
2.10. Responsible Contractors 
2.11. Diversity in Contracting 

 
3. Service Categories, Public Works, Other Purchases and Levels of Competitive 

Solicitation  
 
3.1.   Professional Services  
3.2.   Personal Services  
3.3.   Purchased Services  
3.4.   Public Works  
3.5.   Design-Build Contracting for Public Works Projects  
3.6.  Federal Procurement Standards Policy 
3.7.  Other Purchases – Goods, Equipment, Materials, Supplies 

 
4. Legal References 

 
5. Appendix 

 
Exhibit A – CDRPA Resolution 2021-08 Policies and Procedures to Implement 
Design-Build Contracting for Public Works Projects 

 
 Exhibit B – CDRPA Federal Procurement Standards Policy 

 

 

 



4 
 

1. DEFINITIONS 
 

Bid Limits. Contract, project, or purchase dollar amounts inclusive of tax, which define 
bidding requirements.  Formal competition is required above bid limits in order to 
encourage fairness, open competition, and efficiency.  Below bid limits, agencies 
have varying degrees of flexibility in establishing purchasing and contracting 
procedures. To that end, this Policy establishes uniform purchasing and 
contracting procedures to be followed by the Port which complies with any 
statutory bid limits and requirements. 

Competitive Solicitation. A documented process providing an equal and open 
opportunity to qualified parties and culminating in a selection based on criteria, in 
which criteria other than price may be the primary basis for consideration. The 
criteria may include such factors as the consultant's fees or costs, ability, capacity, 
experience, reputation, responsiveness to time limitations, responsiveness to 
solicitation requirements, quality of previous performance, and compliance with 
statutes and rules relating to contracts or services.  

Emergency. A set of unforeseen circumstances beyond the control of the Port that either: 
(1) Present a real, immediate threat to the proper performance of essential 
functions; or (2) May result in material loss or damage to property, bodily injury, 
or loss of life if immediate action is not taken 

Formal Competition. Above bid limits specified in statutes, formal competition and 
bidding is required. Typically, formal solicitations are more rigorous or time-
intensive, and likely apply to larger and more complex contracts and purchases. 
The exact formal procedures are laid out in this Policy and additional Port 
documents. Usually, formal competition requires public advertisement for a 
specified time and in a particular manner, sealed bids, and public bid openings. The 
contract must be awarded to the lowest responsive, responsible bidder, and the 
bid results must be published.   

Informal Competition. State statutes allow many agencies to follow less stringent 
competitive requirements for projects below a certain threshold by selecting 
businesses from a small works roster or a vendor list. For public works projects, 
eligible agencies can use the small public works roster process for projects below 
$300,000 for port districts. For purchases, eligible agencies may use a vendor list 
up to a certain amount, with the maximum dollar limit depending on the agency’s 
statutes and adopted policies. The Port’s limits as they relate to the level and 



5 
 

requirements of competitive bidding are established and provided below in this 
Policy.    

Minimal Competition. Below bid limits, competitive bidding, informal or formal, is not 
required. No requirement to seek multiple or written quotes. Agencies may seek 
quotes directly from individual vendors or a vendor may be selected from the small 
works roster.  

Ordinary Maintenance. Maintenance work performed by the regular employees of the 
state or any county, municipality, or political subdivision created by its laws. 

Personal Services.  Professional or technical expertise provided by a consultant to 
accomplish a specific study, project, task, or other work statement which may not 
reasonably be required in connection with a public works project (not including 
professional architecture and engineering services). 

Public Works. All work, construction, alteration, repair, or improvement, other than 
ordinary maintenance, executed at the cost of the state or of any municipality, or 
which is by law a lien or charge on any property therein. 

Purchasing.  Purchases of goods, equipment, supplies, or materials that are not 
connected with a public works project.  

Purchased Services. Services provided by a vendor to accomplish routine, continuing, and 
necessary functions. "Purchased services" includes, but is not limited to, services 
for equipment maintenance and repair; operation of a physical plant; security; 
computer hardware and software maintenance; data entry; and computer time-
sharing, contract programming, and analysis.  

Professional Architecture and Engineering Services. Professional services provided by a 
consultant that fall under architecture, engineering, land surveying, or landscape 
architecture.   

Responsible Bidder/Contractor. A contractor who meets the criteria in RCW 39.04.350 
as follows: 

a. Has a certificate of registration in compliance with Chapter 18.27 RCW; 
b. Has a current state unified business identifier number; 
c. If applicable, has industrial insurance coverage for the bidder's employees 

working in Washington, an employment security department number, and a 
state excise tax registration number; 

d. Is not barred from bidding on any public works contract under RCW 39.06.010 
or 39.12.065(3); 



6 
 

e. If bidding on a public works project subject to the apprenticeship utilization 
requirements, not have been found out of compliance by the Washington state 
apprenticeship and training council for working apprentices out of ratio, 
without appropriate supervision, or outside their approved work processes for 
the one-year period immediately preceding the date of the bid solicitation; 

f. Has training on the requirements related to public works and prevailing wage; 
and 

g. Within the three-year period immediately preceding the date of the bid 
solicitation, not have been determined by a final and binding citation and 
notice of assessment issued by the department of labor and industries or 
through a civil judgment entered by a court of limited or general jurisdiction to 
have willfully violated any provision of Chapters 49.46, 49.48, or 49.52 RCW. 
 

Sole Source. A consultant providing professional or technical expertise, or a contractor 
providing goods or services of such a unique nature that the consultant or 
contractor is clearly and justifiably the only practicable source to provide the goods 
or services. The justification shall be based on the uniqueness of the service, sole 
availability at the location required, or warranty or defect correction service 
obligations of the consultant. 

Unit-Priced Contract. A competitively bid contract in which public works are anticipated 
on a recurring basis to meet the business or operational needs of a port district, 
under which the contractor agrees to a fixed period indefinite quantity delivery of 
work, at a defined unit price, for each category of work. 



7 
 

2. GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR PURCHASING AND CONTRACTING 
 

The following outlines General Guidelines for making purchases and contracting: 
  

2.1.   Individual Authority 
 

The “Delegation of Authority” is adopted annually via Port Resolution and gives the Chief 
Executive Officer (“CEO”) administrative powers and duties. Those duties and powers 
include the ability to delegate purchasing authority to specific individual staff members.  
 

2.2.   Local Preference 
 

All things being equal in terms of cost, delivery and vendor support, preference will be 
given to vendors and/or service providers operating in Chelan and Douglas Counties.  
 

2.3.   Conflicts of Interest 
 
“Employees have an obligation to conduct business within guidelines that prohibit actual, 
potential, or perceived conflicts of interest.” (See Port Personnel Handbook – Policy No. 
805: Conflicts of Interest). Moreover, if an employee has any influence on transactions 
involving purchases or contracts, it is imperative that he or she discloses to a supervisor 
as soon as possible the existence of any actual or potential conflict of interest so that 
safeguards can be established to protect all parties.   
 

2.4.   Availability of Funds 
 

Employees with purchasing/contracting authority shall ensure that purchases are 
initiated only where budgeted funds within a particular account are sufficient to cover 
the anticipated cost. This applies to both operating budget line items and capital budget 
accounts. 
 
Project Managers (those persons introducing and supporting capital and maintenance 
projects) are responsible for the general oversight of all project costs; i.e. work orders, 
contracts, purchase orders, etc., verifying that the aggregate project costs do not exceed 
the authorized budget line item.  
 
If it is anticipated that project budget may be insufficient for a specific purchase, the 
project manager should review available options for completing the funding first with the 
Director of Finance. 
 



8 
 

2.5.   Capital Purchases and Projects 
 

New Capital Purchases are expenditures used in the operation of the Port which are more 
than $5,000 in cost and have a useful life longer than one year. 
Maintenance and Repair projects are “capitalized” if the work costs more than $10,000 
and increases the useful life or enhances the use of the asset. 
 
All proposed Capital Projects and Capital Maintenance projects are approved through the 
annual budget and/or supplemental budget process. Any proposed expenditures for 
products or services that have not been approved through the formal budget process are 
subject to the latest version of the Delegation of Authority.  
 

2.6.   Emergency Purchases 
 

When an emergency shall require the immediate acquisition of materials, equipment, 
supplies, services, or public works, the CEO is authorized to make a finding of the 
existence of such emergency and execute any contract to respond to the emergency 
provided that the CEO shall, at the first Board of Directors meeting following the finding 
of the existence of an emergency, or in no event later than fourteen (14) days after the 
contract has been awarded (or for Personal Service Contracts seven (7) days), request 
Board of Directors ratification of the finding of an emergency and any contract awarded 
or executed pursuant to this authority. Emergency purchasing shall only be used to avoid 
immediate hazard to life, to preserve Port property, or to prevent significant service 
disruptions. Such emergency purchases are not subject to the competitive pricing and/or 
formal bid processes.  
 

2.7.   Contract Log 
 

Pursuant to RCW 53.08.440, the Port shall maintain and updated quarterly a contract log, 
listing all current contracts, on the Port’s website. At a minimum, the log must identify 
the contractor, purpose of contract, effective dates, period of performance, the cost of 
the contract and funding source, any modifications to the contract, including 
amendments and change orders, and how the contract was procured (competitively or 
sole source basis).  
  

2.8.   Length of Contracts 
 

The Port shall not enter into contracts with an auto renewal clause unless approved by 
the CEO.  Initial contract terms shall not exceed two years, unless the project duration will 
be longer.  Contracts can allow for up to two, one-year renewals. However, unit-priced 



9 
 

contracts may be executed for an initial contract term not to exceed three years, with the 
Port having the option of extending or renewing the unit-priced contract for one 
additional year.  
 

2.9.   Insurance Requirements 
 

All service providers, vendors, contractors and suppliers delivering goods or performing 
services on behalf of the Port must have insurance against claims for injuries to persons 
or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance by 
the service provider/supplier, their agents, representatives, employees, or 
subcontractors. Proof of insurance and naming the Chelan Douglas Regional Port 
Authority, Port of Chelan County, and Port of Douglas County as an additional insured on 
their policy is required and shall be made a term of the purchase or service contract.     
 

2.10. Responsible Contractors 
 

Before selecting a contractor or vendor, the Project Manager shall verify their debarment 
and responsible contractor status. Additionally, each contractor and vendor will certify to 
their debarment and/or responsible contractor status under the purchase or service 
contract.  
 

2.11. Diversity in Contracting 
 
The Port will ensure that minority and women-owned firms and veteran-owned firms are 
afforded the maximum practicable opportunity to compete for and obtain public 
contracts under this Policy. 



10 
 

3. SERVICE CATEGORIES, PUBLIC WORKS, OTHER PURCHASES AND LEVELS OF 
COMPETITIVE SOLICITATION 

 
This section provides guidance on determining the appropriate category of services 
and/or purchases before a particular contract as well as the appropriate method of 
solicitation.  

3.1 Professional Services 
 

3.1.1 General: Professional Services are rendered by any person, other than as an 
employee of the agency, contracting to perform activities within the general 
definition of professional practice. They are services which provide 
professional or technical expertise to accomplish a specific study, project, 
task, or other work statement  As defined in Chapter 39.80 RCW, 
Professional Services include, but are not limited to, architects (Chapter 
18.08 RCW), engineers and land surveyors (Chapter 18.43 RCW), and 
landscape architects (Chapter 18.96 RCW).  

 
3.1.2 Examples of Professional Services: All engineering disciplines, land 

surveyors, architects, landscape architects, environmental consulting, 
hazardous material inspections, and construction materials testing and 
inspections (if consultant is providing professional judgment by providing 
analysis of testing for compliance with specifications in their reports).    

 
3.1.3 Solicitation Procedure:*  

 
ACTIVITY < $50K $50K - $100K >$100K 

LEVEL OF COMPETITIVE 
SOLICITATION 

Minimal Informal Formal 

TYPE OF SOLICITATION 

Consulting 
Services Roster, 
pursuant to 
Port Resolution 
2021-09 
(Review of 
Qualifications) 

Consulting Services  
Roster, pursuant to  
Port Resolution  
2021-09 (RFP to 
Minimum of 3)**  

 Detailed scope 
description,  
Public Request 
for Proposals & 
Evaluation 
Criteria 

ADVERTISEMENT 
METHOD (# TO SOLICIT) 

Public Notice 
Required - 

See Section 3.1.4 

Public Notice 
Required - 

See Section 3.1.4 

Public Notice Required - 
See Section 3.1.4 

SOLICITATION APPROVAL CEO Board of Directors 



11 
 

*Staff may elect to use a Formal Solicitation for any value when appropriate If the project includes grant 
funding, the conditions of the grant may require a specific method of advertisement and other aspects of 
the solicitation process; wherever a discrepancy exists between Port and grant funded methods, the more 
stringent set of methods shall apply. 

3.1.4 Public Notice Required: Professional Services are required to be procured 
under the provisions of Chapter 39.80 RCW. RCW 39.80.030 requires that 
the Port publish its need for Professional Services in advance, concisely 
stating the general scope and nature of the project or work for which 
services are required. The notice must also provide the address of a 
representative of the Port who can provide additional details. Compliance 
with this requirement may be accomplished by either:  

 
a. Publishing an announcement each time the service is needed; or 
 
b. Announcing generally to the public the Port’s projected 

requirements for any category or type of professional services such 
as the annual Consultant Services Roster advertisement. 

 
3.1.5 Basis of Award: Professional Services are awarded using the Qualifications-

Based Selection (QBS) requirements. QBS is a competitive procurement 
process in which the Port reviews the qualifications of professional service 
firms and where price cannot be used as a selection criterion, to select the 
most qualified firm for the project. The most qualified firm will be selected 
as follows: 
 
a. For contracts below $50,000, using a QBS process, the Port will 

review the qualifications of the appropriate firms on the Consulting 
Services Roster who have indicated the capability of performing the 
kind of services being contracted. 

 
b. For contracts between $50,000 and $100,000, the Port will utilize a 

request for proposals to provide a description of the project, solicit 
firm qualifications, and provide evaluation criteria from at least three 
(3) firms on the Consulting Services Roster.  

 
c. For contracts above $100,000, the Port will utilize a public request 

for proposals to provide a description of the project, solicit firm 
qualifications, and provide evaluation criteria. 

 



12 
 

After the most qualified firm has been chosen, the Port will negotiate a 
contract for a fair and reasonable price, taking in account the estimated 
value of the services to be rendered as well as the scope, complexity, and 
professional nature thereof. If the Port cannot negotiate a contract with the 
firm at a price that is fair and reasonable, negotiations with that firm will be 
formally terminated and the Port will select the next most qualified firm(s) 
until an agreement is reached or the process is terminated.  

 
3.1.6 Competitive Solicitation Exemption: All Professional Service contracts shall 

be entered into pursuant to the QBS detailed above except for:  
 

a. Emergency contracts; and  
 
b. Contract amendments. Professional Service contracts will not be 

amended in lieu of open competition if the added work is not 
similar in scope and size. 

 
3.1.7 Form of Contract: For contracts up to $50,000, the Port should use a 

standard short format agreement referred to as “Short Form Professional 
Services Agreement.”  For contracts in excess of $50,000 the Port should 
use a standard format referred to as a “Standard Agreement for 
Professional Services.” 

3.1.8 Signing Authority: The CEO may, without prior Board of Director approval, 
execute contracts up to $50,000. 

 
3.1.9 Board of Director Action/Notification: Board of Director action is required if 

the limits of the “Signing Authority” will be exceeded.   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



13 
 

3.2 Personal Services 
 

3.2.1 General: As defined in Chapter 53.19 RCW, Personal Services means 
technical expertise provided by a consultant to render an opinion or 
recommendation or to accomplish a specific study, project, task, service or 
other work statement which may not reasonably be required in connection 
with a public works project and the activity or product is mostly intellectual 
in nature. Personal Services do not include architecture and engineering 
services, nor should they be confused with purchased services, which are 
generally routine, repetitive, or mechanical in nature and support an 
agency's day-to-day operations. 

 
3.2.2 Examples of Personal Services: Accounting, comprehensive plans, legal 

services, management analyses, grant writing, and public relations. Certain 
personal services may require licensing or certification by state agencies, 
such as accounting, legal, or medical services. 

 
3.2.3 Solicitation Procedure: *  

 

ACTIVITY < $50K $50K - $200K >$200K 

    
LEVEL OF COMPETITIVE 

SOLICITATION 
Minimal Informal Formal 

TYPE OF SOLICITATION 
general scope 

description 
detailed scope               description &     

evaluation criteria 

ADVERTISEMENT METHOD (# 
TO SOLICIT) 

1-3 3 minimum Public Notice Required 

SOLICITATION APPROVAL CEO 

*Staff may elect to use a Formal Solicitation for any value when appropriate. If the project includes grant 
funding, the conditions of the grant may require a specific method of advertisement and other aspects of 
the solicitation process; wherever a discrepancy exists between Port and grant funded methods, the more 
stringent set of methods shall apply.  

3.2.4 Basis of Award: Pursuant to Chapter 53.19 RCW, for contracts above 
$50,000, the selection of Personal Services shall include a documented 
competitive solicitation process demonstrating that the Port has solicited 
responses from an appropriate number of firms thereby providing an equal 
and open opportunity to qualified parties and culminating in a selection 



14 
 

based on specific evaluation criteria developed and included in the Informal 
and Formal solicitations which may include such factors as: (1) the 
consultant’s fees or costs (does not necessarily need to be the primary basis 
for consideration), (2) ability, (3) capacity to undertake the project, (4) 
experience, (5) reputation for responsiveness to time limitations, (6) 
responsiveness to solicitation requirements, and (7) quality of previous 
performance on Port projects. 

3.2.5 Competitive Solicitation Exemption: As provided for in RCW 53.19.020, all 
Personal Service contracts shall be entered into pursuant to competitive 
solicitation, except for:  

 
a. Contracts under $50,000;  
 
b. Contracts awarded to companies that furnish a service where the 

tariff is established by the utilities and transportation commission or 
other public entity; 

 
c. Intergovernmental agreements awarded to any governmental 

entity; 
 
d. Contracts awarded for services to be performed for a standard fee, 

when the standard fee is established by the contracting agency or 
any other governmental entity and a like contract is available to all 
qualified applicants; 

 
e. Contracts for services that are necessary to the conduct of 

collaborative research if prior approval is granted by the funding 
source; 

 
f. Contracts for professional services which are entered into under 

chapter 39.80 RCW; 
 
g. Contracts for the employment of expert witnesses for the purposes 

of litigation or legal services to supplement the expertise of port 
staff; 

 
h. Emergency contracts; 
 



15 
 

i. Sole source contracts. Personal Services may be selected on a “Sole 
Source” basis if the consultant providing technical expertise is of such 
a unique nature that the consultant is clearly and justifiably the only 
practicable source to provide the service; the justification shall be 
based on either the uniqueness of the service or sole availability at 
the location required. The person making the selection shall provide 
a Sole-Source Justification memo to the Board of Directors justifying 
the sole source selection prior to the start date of the contract; 

 
j. Contract amendments, provided, however, that substantial change 

in the scope of work specified in the contract or which are substantial 
additions to the scope of work specified in the formal solicitation 
must be submitted to the Board of Directors for a determination of 
whether the change warrants a new contract as required by RCW 
53.19.060. Personal Service contracts will not be amended in lieu of 
open competition if the added work is not similar in scope and size; 
and 

 
k. Other specific contracts or classes or groups of contracts exempted 

from the competitive solicitation process by the Board of Directors 
when it has been determined that a competitive solicitation process 
is not appropriate or cost-effective, including purchases involving 
special facilities or market conditions.   
 

3.2.6 Form of Contract: The Port uses a standard format referred to as a 
“Standard Agreement for Personal Services” which is processed by the 
Project Manager. A Short-Form Contract may also be issued to engage 
Personal Services in lieu of a “Standard Agreement for Personal Services” if 
all of the following conditions are met: 

 
a. The project scope is clearly defined by tasks and deliverables either 

on the Short-Form Contract or in correspondence from the 
Consultant to be attached to the Short-Form Contract; 

 
b. The project scope can be completed in a short term, typically within 

thirty (30) days; 
 
c. Cost for the service is under $10,000; 
 



16 
 

d. Liability insurance is not required because consultant is not working 
on Port property; and 

 
e. Professional liability insurance is not required. 

 

If a Short-Form Contract is used, the Project Manager must file compliance 
documentation for selection along with the Short-Form Contract. 

3.2.7 Signing Authority: The CEO may, without prior Board of Director approval, 
execute all Personal Services contracts, regardless of contract amount.  

  



17 
 

3.3 Purchased Services 
 

3.3.1 General: Purchased Services are those provided by vendors for routine, 
necessary, and continuing functions of a local government agency, mostly 
relating to physical activities. These services are usually repetitive, routine, 
or mechanical in nature, support the agency’s day-to-day operations, 
involve the completion of specific tasks or projects, and involve minimal 
decision-making. There are a number of purchased services that hover a 
grey line between purchased services and public works contracting. If a 
particular contract is very near the line, the Port endeavors to take the 
conservative approach and consider it a public works contract.   

 
3.3.2 Examples of Purchased Services: Delivery/courier service, landscape 

maintenance, building maintenance (janitorial), herbicide and pesticide 
application services, recycling/disposal/litter pickup service, vehicle 
inspection-lubricating-repair services, computer hardware and software 
maintenance,  and security services.    

 
3.3.3 Solicitation Procedure: *  

 

ACTIVITY < $10K $10K-$50K >$50K 

LEVEL OF 
COMPETITIVE 
SOLICITATION 

Minimal 
 

Informal 
Formal 

TYPE OF 
SOLICITATION 

General scope 
description 

 

Detailed scope description & 
evaluation criteria 

Detailed scope 
description & 

evaluation 
criteria 

ADVERTISEMENT 
METHOD (# TO 

SOLICIT) 

1-3 
Open Market 

Small Works Roster, pursuant to 
RCW 39.04.155 and Port 

Resolution 2021-09 (3 minimum) 

Public Notice 
Required 

SOLICITATION 
APPROVAL 

None CEO Board of 
Directors 

*Staff may elect to use a Formal Solicitation for any value when appropriate. If the project includes grant 
funding, the conditions of the grant may require a specific method of advertisement and other aspects of 
the solicitation process; wherever a discrepancy exists between Port and grant funded methods, the more 
stringent set of methods shall apply.   



18 
 

3.3.4 Prevailing Wage: Some Purchased Services require Prevailing Wages to be 
paid even though they are not subject to Public Works bidding 
requirements. These Purchased Services include: (1) building maintenance 
services (janitorial), (2) grounds keeping, (3) traffic control (flagging), and 
(4) fire extinguisher service and replacement. The foregoing services 
providers must file a Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages prior to 
when the work is performed and payment is made and an Affidavit of 
Wages Paid upon completion. Prevailing wage requirements must be 
included in the Solicitation provided by the Port.  

 
3.3.5 Basis of Award: The selection of Purchased Services shall include a 

documented competitive solicitation process demonstrating that the Port 
has solicited responses from an appropriate number of vendors thereby 
providing an equal and open opportunity to qualified parties and 
culminating in a selection based on specific evaluation criteria developed 
and included in the Informal and Formal solicitations which may include 
such factors as: (1) the vendor’s fees or costs (does not necessarily need to 
be the primary basis for consideration), (2) ability, (3) capacity to undertake 
the project, (4) experience, (5) reputation for responsiveness to time 
limitations, (6) responsiveness to solicitation requirements, and (7) quality 
of previous performance on Port projects.  

 
3.3.6 Competitive Solicitation Exemption: All Purchased Service contracts shall be 

entered into pursuant to competitive solicitation, except for:  
 

a. Emergency contracts;  
 
b. Sole source contracts. The person making the selection shall provide 

a Sole-Source Justification memo to the Board of Directors justifying 
the sole source selection prior to the start date of the contract;  

 
c. Contract amendments. Purchase Service contracts will not be 

amended in lieu of open competition if the added work is not similar 
in scope and size; and  

 
d. Purchases involving special facilities or market conditions. 

 
3.3.7 Form of Contract: The Port uses either a Service Agreement or Short-Form 

Contract depending on the length, size and scope of services provided, 
insurance requirements, and prevailing wage requirements. Services that 



19 
 

(1) span more than one billing cycle, (2) require insurance, and (3) require 
prevailing wages to be paid should be procured using a Service Agreement. 
In the event a service spans more than one fiscal year, Board of Director 
approval is required, or the contract must include language that makes the 
contract contingent upon further budget appropriation and Board of 
Director approval. 

  
3.3.8 Signing Authority: The CEO may, without prior Board of Director approval, 

execute Purchased Service contracts up to $50,000 as long as funds for such 
Purchased Service is within the overall approved budget. 

 
3.3.9 Board of Director Action/Notification: Board of Director action is required 

if the limits of the “Signing Authority” will be exceeded. 
 

  



20 
 

3.4 Public Works 
 

3.4.1 General: Public Work means all work, construction, alteration, repair, or 
improvement other than ordinary maintenance, executed at the cost of the 
state or of any municipality, or which is by law a lien or charge on any 
property therein. “Ordinary maintenance” is defined in WAC 296-127-
010(7)(b)(ii) as maintenance work performed by the regular employees of 
the state or any county, municipality, or political subdivision created by its 
laws.   

 

3.4.2 Examples of Public Works: New construction, building/structure remodeling 
and repairs, road construction and repairs (including striping), and all other 
work involving - construction, alteration, enlargement, improvement, 
repairs, and/or demolition which, by law, constitutes a lien or charge on any 
property of the state or of a municipality.   

 
3.4.3 Solicitation Procedure: *   

 
ACTIVITY <$5K $5K - $50K $50K - $300K >$300K 

LEVEL OF 
COMPETITIVE 
SOLICITATION 

None 

 
Minimal  Informal Formal 

TYPE OF 
SOLICITATION 

general scope 
and 

description 
general scope and nature, including 

materials and equipment to be furnished** 

detailed plans 
& scope 

description 

ADVERTISEMENT 
METHOD (# TO 

SOLICIT) 

Open Market, 
1 – 3 

Small Works 
Roster, Pursuant to 
RCW 39.04.155 and 

Port Resolution 
2021-09 (3 min.) 

*** 

Small Works Roster, 
Pursuant to RCW 

39.04.155 and Port 
Resolution 2021-09 

(5 min.) 

Public Notice 
Required 

SOLICITATION 
APPROVAL 

None CEO 
CEO (under 

$100k)/BOD (over 
$100k) 

Board of 
Directors 

*Staff may elect to use a Formal Solicitation for any value when appropriate. If the project includes grant 
funding, the conditions of the grant may require a specific method of advertisement and other aspects of 
the solicitation process; wherever a discrepancy exists between Port and grant funded methods, the more 
stringent set of methods shall apply. 



21 
 

** This does not eliminate other requirements for architectural or engineering approvals as to quality and 
compliance with building codes. 

*** See section 3.4.10 for Awarding Public Works without Bids 

3.4.5 Small Work Roster Process: The Port Board of Directors established the 
implementation of the small works roster process in Resolution 2021-09. 
The small works roster may be used to award contracts for construction, 
building, renovation, remodeling, alteration, repair, or improvement or real 
property which the estimated cost is $300,000 or less. The small works 
roster shall consist of all responsible contractors who have requested to be 
on the list, and where required by law are properly licensed or registered to 
perform such work in this state. Annually, the Port shall publish, in a 
newspaper of general circulation within the jurisdiction, a notice of the 
existence of the small works roster and, through such publication, solicit the 
names of contractors for said small works roster. Contractors desiring to be 
placed on the small works roster must keep current records of any 
applicable licenses, certification, registration, bonding, insurance, or other 
appropriate matters and, where requested, provide the same to the Port as 
a condition of being placed on the small works roster. In addition, 
responsible contractors shall be added to the small works roster at any time 
if they submit a written request to the Port and necessary records. The Port 
may alternatively use the MRSC small works roster to seek qualified 
contractors. 
   

3.4.6 Solicitation Procedure: For Public Works contracts solicited using the small 
works roster process, the Port shall obtain telephone, written or electronic 
quotations from the appropriate number of contractors for the size of the 
contract on the small works roster who have indicated the capability of 
performing the kind of work being contracted, and in a manner that will 
equitably distribute the opportunity among the contractors. Invitations for 
quotations shall include an estimate of the scope and nature of the work to 
be performed as well as materials and equipment to be furnished. However, 
detailed plans and specifications need not be included in the invitation.  

 
For contracts between $50,000 and $300,000, quotations must be invited 
from a minimum of five (5), but up to all of the appropriate contractors on 
the small works roster. If the estimated cost of the contract is more than 
$250,000 and the Port chooses to solicit quotations from less than all the 
appropriate contractors on the small works roster, it must notify the 
remaining contractors on the small works roster that quotations are being 
sought. Notice under this section may be made by: (1) publishing notice in 



22 
 

a legal newspaper in general circulation in the area where the work is being 
done, (2) mailing a notice to the contractors, or (3) sending notice to the 
contractors by electronic means.  
 
For contracts between $5,000 and $50,000 (Limited Public Works projects), 
quotations must be invited from a minimum of three (3) appropriate 
contractors from the small work roster.     

 
3.4.7 Solicitation Procedure For Unit-Priced Public Works Projects: In addition to 

the above solicitation procedure, for the purpose of bid evaluation, Unit-
priced contracts must be competitively bid, with invitations including: (1) 
estimated quantities of the anticipated type of work or trades and (2) 
specifications on how the Port will issue or release work assignments, work 
orders, or task authorizations pursuant to a unit priced contract for projects, 
tasks, or other work based on the hourly rates or unit priced bid by the 
contractor.  

 
3.4.8 Prevailing Wages: Chapter 39.12 RCW requires contractors and 

subcontractors to pay prevailing wages to all workers for all public works 
and maintenance contracts, regardless of the dollar value of the contract. 
These contractors and subcontractor must file a Statement of Intent to Pay 
Prevailing Wages prior to when the work is performed and payment is made 
and an Affidavit of Wages Paid upon completion. Prevailing wage 
requirements must be included in the Solicitation provided by the Port. 

 
3.4.9 Basis of Award: Public Works contracts must be awarded in accordance with 

the requirements in RCW 53.08.120 and RCW 39.04.350. Contracts will be 
awarded to the lowest responsible bidder in accordance with RCW 
39.04.350. 
 

3.4.10 Procedure for Awarding Public Works without Bids: In addition to using the 
small work roster process, pursuant to RCW 53.08.120(c), port districts also 
have the option to construct any Public Works project by soliciting on the 
open market and without calling for bids (solicit 1-3 contractors for quotes), 
whenever the estimated cost of the work or improvement, including the 
cost of material, supplies, and equipment, will not exceed $40,000. Under 
this statute, Public Works projects cannot be divided into units of work or 
classes of work to avoid calling for bids. Port staff must utilize their best 
effort to reach out to qualified contractors, including certified minority and 

http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=39.12


23 
 

woman-owned contractors and must also document the selection process 
for audit requirements and retention. 

 
3.4.11 Competitive Solicitation Exemption: RCW 39.04.280 provides the following 

uniform exemptions to competitive bidding requirements for Public Works 
contracts:  

 
a. Emergency contracts;  

 
b. Sole source contracts. The person making the selection shall provide 

a Sole-Source Justification memo to the Board of Directors justifying 
the sole source selection prior to the start date of the contract;  

 
c. Purchases of insurance or bonds; 

 
d. Contract amendments. Public Works contracts will not be amended 

in lieu of open competition if the added work is not similar in scope 
and size; and 

 
e.  Purchases involving special facilities or market conditions. 

  

3.4.12 Form of Contract: The Port contracts for Public Works using either a Short 
Form Contract for Limited Public Works (LPW) projects under $40,000 or a 
Public Works Contract for projects over $40,000.  

 
3.4.13 Retainage and Bond Requirements:  

 
a. Retainage. Chapter 60.28 RCW requires contract retainage on 

“public improvement contracts” unless the contract is for a federally 
funded transportation project. Often, contracted maintenance will 
not involve making any “public improvement.” If so, there is no 
requirement for any contract retainage on a maintenance contract.  

 
 For projects awarded under the small works roster or Limited Public 

Works processes established in this Policy, the Port may waive the 
retainage requirements of RCW 60.28.011(1)(a), thereby assuming 
the liability for contractor's nonpayment of laborers, mechanics, 
subcontractors, materialpersons, suppliers, taxes, increases, and 
penalties under Titles 50, 51, and 82 RCW that may be due from the 
contractor for the project. However, the Port has the right of 



24 
 

recovery against the contractor for any payments made on the 
contractor's behalf. Recovery of unpaid wages and benefits shall be 
the first priority for actions filed against the contract. 

 
b. Bond. RCW 39.08.010 requires a contract bond on state or local 

government contracts with any person or corporation to perform 
any work. That is a broad requirement that applies to contracted 
ordinary maintenance. RCW 39.08.015 places liability on the public 
entity when the entity fails to obtain the required contract bond. 

 
 For projects awarded under the Limited Public Works process 

established in this Policy, the Port may waive the bond requirements 
of RCW 39.08.010.  

 
 Additionally, for contracts below $150,000, at the option of the 

contractor or the general contractor/construction manager, the Port 
may, in lieu of the bond, retain ten percent (10%) of the contract 
amount for a period of thirty (30) days after date of final acceptance, 
or until receipt of all necessary releases from the department of 
revenue, the employment security department, and the department 
of labor and industries and settlement of any liens filed under 
Chapter 60.28 RCW, whichever is later. The recovery of unpaid wages 
and benefits shall be the first priority for any actions filed against 
retainage held by the Port.  

 
3.4.14 Signing Authority: The CEO may, without prior Board of Director approval, 

execute contracts up to $50,000 as long as funds for such contract is within 
the overall approved budget. 

 
3.4.15 Board of Director Action/Notification: Board of Director action is required if 

the limits of the “Signing Authority” will be exceeded. The Board of Directors 
will be provided an updated contract log on a quarterly basis containing all 
Public Works contracts awarded.  

 

  



25 
 

3.5 Design-Build Contracting for Public Works Projects  
 

3.5.1 Incorporation: Chapter 39.10 RCW authorizes alternative public works 
contracting procedures, including design-build procedures, because under 
certain circumstances, alternative public works contracting procedures may 
best serve the public interest if such procedures are implemented in an 
open and fair process based on objective and equitable criteria. Port 
Resolution No. 2021-08, establishes Policies and Procedures to implement 
design-build contracting for Public Works projects with the Port and is 
attached to this Policy as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this 
reference.  

 
 

  



26 
 

3.6 Federal Procurement Standards Policy 
 

3.6.1 Incorporation: The Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Federal 
Procurement Standard Policy establishes Policies and Procedures to 
implement federal regulations and establishes a code of conduct regarding 
the Port’s purchasing and contracting decisions to ensure efficient, fair and 
professional administration of Federal grant funds in compliance with 
federal regulation and laws. The Federal Procurement Standard Policy is 
attached to this Policy as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by this 
reference.      

  



27 
 

4.5 Other Purchases – Goods, Equipment, Materials, and Supplies 
 

4.5.1 General: Other Purchases refers to buying of goods, equipment, materials, 
and supplies, as long as the purchase is not made in connection with a Public 
Works project. If the purchase is made in connection with a Public Works 
project, it must follow the Public Works bidding requirements detailed in 
Section 3.4 above. Moreover, the solicitation and bidding requirements in 
this Policy for Other Purchases do not apply to the purchases of goods, 
equipment, materials, and supplies where the cost will not exceed $5,000. 
In making such purchases, however, the Port will endeavor to obtain the 
lowest practical price for such equipment, materials, and supplies. 

 
4.5.2 Examples of Materials, Equipment, and Supplies: Supplies, computer 

hardware/software & other electronics, vehicles, equipment, and tools.  
 
4.5.3 Solicitation Procedure: *  

 

ACTIVITY $5K-$50K >$50K 

LEVEL OF COMPETITIVE 
SOLICITATION 

Minimal Formal 

TYPE OF SOLICITATION general scope description 
detailed scope description & 

evaluation criteria 

ADVERTISEMENT 
METHOD (# TO SOLICIT) 

Open Market (3 minimum) Public Notice Required 

SOLICITATION APPROVAL None CEO 

*Staff may elect to use a Formal Solicitation for any value when appropriate. If the project includes grant 
funding, the conditions of the grant may require a specific method of advertisement and other aspects of 
the solicitation process; wherever a discrepancy exists between Port and grant funded methods, the more 
stringent set of methods shall apply. 

4.5.4 Basis of Award: The selection of Other Purchases shall include a 
documented competitive solicitation process demonstrating that the Port 
has solicited responses from an appropriate number of vendors thereby 
providing an equal and open opportunity to qualified parties and 
culminating in a selection based on specific evaluation criteria developed 
and included in the Formal solicitation which may include such factors as: 
(1) the vendor’s fees or costs (does not necessarily need to be the primary 
basis for consideration), (2) ability, (3) capacity to undertake the work, (4) 



28 
 

reputation, (5) responsiveness to time limitations, (6) responsiveness to 
solicitation requirements, and (7) quality of previous performance.  

 
4.5.5 Competitive Solicitation Exemption: RCW 39.04.280 provides the following 

uniform exemptions to competitive bidding requirements for Purchase 
contracts:  

 
a. Emergency contracts;  
 
b. Sole source contracts. The person making the selection shall provide 

a Sole-Source Justification memo to the Board of Directors justifying 
the sole source selection prior to the start date of the contract;  

 
c. Purchases of insurance or bonds; 
 
d. Contract amendments. Purchase contracts will not be amended in 

lieu of open competition if the added work is not similar in scope and 
size; and 

 
e. Purchases involving special facilities or market conditions. 

 
4.5.6 Form of Contract: Purchase Order or Credit Card. 
 
4.5.7 Signing Authority: The CEO may, without prior Board of Director approval, 

execute Purchase Orders up to $50,000. 
 
4.5.8 Board of Director Action/Notification: Board of Director action is required if 

the limits of the “Signing Authority” will be exceeded. 
 

  



29 
 

4. LEGAL REFERENCES 
 

4.1  RCWs: 
 
Chapter 39.12 RCW 
Chapter 53.08 RCW 
Chapter 53.19 RCW 
Chapter 60.28 RCW  
Chapter 39.10 RCW 
Chapter 39.04 RCW 
Chapter 39.08 RCW 
 

4.2   Port Policies and Resolutions: 
 
Port Delegation of Authority – Adopted by Resolution annually 
Port Resolution No. 2021-10 – Adopting Port Purchasing and Contracting Policy 
Port Resolution No. 2021-08 – Design-Build Contracting for Public Works Projects 
Port Resolution No. 2021-09 – Adopting Small Works and Consulting Services Rosters  
Port Federal Procurement Standards Policy 

 
4.3  Other References: 

 
MRSC Contracting for Services 
Personal Services Contracting Manual for Washington Ports 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



30 
 

5. APPENDIX 
 



Exhibit A 

 
Exhibit A will be Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Resolution No. 2021-08  

After Approved by the Board. 



CHELAN DOUGLAS REGIONAL PORT AUTHORITY 
FEDERAL PROCUREMENT STANDARDS POLICY 

(1) PURPOSE

The purpose of this policy is to establish and maintain internal controls to provide reasonable 

assurance that expenditures of Federal funds for Airport projects are managed in compliance 

with all applicable Federal regulations and with the terms and conditions of the specific grant 

or award. 

When procuring property and services that involve the expenditure of Federal funds, the 

Airport will follow the procurement standards set forth herein which are intended to comply 

with 2 CFR § 200.318 - §200.326, or the purchase procedures set forth by RCW or in the 

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Administrative Policies, whichever is more 

restrictive. 

Nothing herein is intended to affect or modify the authority to approve purchases or execute 

contracts, whether such authority resides with the Governing Board of the Port Authority or 

as delegated to the Chief Executive Officer or Airport Director. 

(2) CODE OF CONDUCT IN CONTRACTING.

The Port Authority establishes the below code of conduct regarding its procurement decisions 

to ensure efficient, fair and professional administration of Federal grant funds in compliance 

with 2 CFR §200.112, 2 CFR §200.318 and other applicable Federal and state standards, 

regulations, and laws. 

2.1 Conflicts of Interest. No employee, officer, elected official, or agent of the 

Port Authority shall participate directly or indirectly in the selection, award, or administration 

of any contract if a conflict of interest, either real or apparent, would be involved. Such a 

conflict would arise when any of the following has a financial or other interest in the firm 

competing for the award: 

2.1.1 An employee, officer, or agent involved in making the award; 

2.1.2 His/her relative (including father, mother, son, daughter, brother, sister, uncle, 

aunt, first cousin, nephew, niece, husband, wife, father-in-law, mother-in-law, son-in

law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, stepfather, stepmother, stepson, 

stepdaughter, stepbrother, stepsister, half-brother, or half-sister); 

2.1.3 His/her partner; or 

2.1.4 An organization which employs or is negotiating to employ, or has an 

arrangement concerning prospective employment of any of the above. 

2.2 Gratuities, Kickbacks, and Use of Confidential Information. No officer, 

employee, or agent of the Port Authority shall ask for or accept gratuities, favors, or items of 

more than nominal value (i.e. inexpensive hat with logo) from any contractor, potential 

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Federal Procurement Standards Policies 

Page 1 of 8 

Exhibit B 



































CWICC Carpet Replacement

BId Tabulation

Contractor CDRPA Estimate The Floor Factory France and Co.

Bid Item #1 $26,800.00 $13,073.10 $26,824.30

Subtotal $26,800.00 $13,073.10 $26,824.30

WSST $2,224.40 $1,085.07 $2,226.42

Total $29,024.40 $14,158.17 $29,050.72



Chelan Douglas Regional Port 
Authority 

Memo 
To: Board of Directors 

From: Jim Kuntz 

Date: April 8, 2021 

Re: Lineage South Proposals 

At the last Board meeting it was decided the Regional Port would accept 
proposals for the Lineage South Properties whenever a private party wanted 
to submit a proposal. The proposal, however, had to follow our RFP format 
that all other interested parties have had to follow. The Board also 
concurred with the Lineage Adaptive Reuse Goals (see attached) as general 
guidelines to follow to determine if a proposal is meeting objectives for the 
properties. 

Based on this direction, two parties have decided to submit proposals. 

• Restoration 1 
• Precision Water Jet/Todd Davidson 

Please find attached the proposals for your review. 





 
 pg. 1 

Proposal for Purchase 
 

Columbia Street  

Wenatchee, WA 98801 

Columbia Street Property – Building G & I 

 

Submitted March 18th 2021 

 

Prepared for: 

Chelan Douglas County Port Authority  

One Campbell Parkway, Suite A 

East Wenatchee, WA 98801 

 

Submitted by: 

 Scott Whitaker - Member 

FERDA LLC DBA Restoration 1 of Spokane 

CENTWA LLC DBA Restoration 1 of Central WA 

 



 
 pg. 2 

 

 

Development Plan and Proposed Uses 

Building G & I will be a single use warehouse and office space used by Restoration 1 of Central 
WA.  

Restoration 1 is a team of property restoration experts and immediate responders who help 
homeowners after disaster strikes. Our professionals are amongst the most trained and experienced 
technicians in the industry. 

 

Restoration 1 of Central WA has the ability to grow 4 to 5 times the size it is now. As of now, 
Restoration 1 of Central WA employs 8 people. Restoration 1 of Central WA is a sister company 
to Restoration 1 of Spokane. 

 

 

  

 

 

 



 
 pg. 3 

The Spokane location has grown to 48 employees and 20,000 sq feet of warehouse and office 
space in the last 3 years. Restoration 1 of Central WA has been encumbered by the warehouse 
space availability in Central WA. With this space, the company would have the ability to create 
a new revenue stream with job growth. The “Contents Division” would use this facility to store 
and clean contents packed out of homes that suffered a disaster. With this facility, we are able 
to hire and train content specialists that live locally. With new jobs, comes more revenue to the 
city.  

 

Building G 

Building G will serve as the main offices and storage building for approximately 150 storage 
vaults. As seen in the picture to the left it 
takes a large building with high ceilings to 
accomplish the vault storage. The interior of 
the building will need to have new offices and 
restrooms built to house the employees we 
plan to hire over the next two years. We plan 
on adding 1500 sq ft of office space to the 
interior of building G. The exterior of the 
building will be painted gray with black 
accents on our logo on the front high side of 
the building.  

We will ask permission from the railroad to 
clean up the gravel on the eastern portion of 
the dock. The Eastern facing large wall along 
the tracks will also have our logo painted on it 
as well. 

The loading ramp off Kittitas St. will serve the 
purpose it was built for. We will have an 
Insulation blow truck stored on that side of 
the building. It will also allow for larger 

shipments to come into our facility once every week or two.  

The rear of Building G, where it adjoins Building I, we plan on fencing in with black fencing to 
create a large, designated parking lot for our employees.  We will utilize a local asphalt 
company to seal and stripe the lot.   

 

 



 
 pg. 4 

 

Building I 

Building I will be painted to match Building G in gray with black accents. Building I will house the 
fleet of vehicles and equipment to accomplish the amount of work as we grow. We plan on 
making the overhead door larger and would match that of the neighbor. The overhead door 
size at the neighbor business (Precision Water Jet) is exactly what we would install on the north 
end of the building. We would leave the man door as seen.    

As of now, Restoration 1 of Central WA has a fleet of 5 Trucks and 1 dump trailer. With the 
purchase of this building, we will be able to house another 15 trucks and 3 more trailers at the 
minimum. The Spokane location is home to a fleet of 35 vehicles.  Some of our fleet is taken 
home each night with employees. The interior of this facility will be fitted with new electrical 
and lighting as well.  

 

We would utilize all local companies in Wenatchee for the work on this project.  

 

Traffic & Parking 

Traffic should not significantly increase and the parking will be built in the rear of the property 
on Yakima St. The only times we would anticipate a surge in traffic is opening and closing hours. 
Even then, we are talking about 20- 30 vehicles over the course of a ½ hour. Our business does 
not have “visitors or shoppers”. Our employees would be the only expected traffic to our 
facility daily. There will be a delivery of goods once every week or two on the dock side of the 
building.  

 

Job Creation / Economic Growth 

Restoration 1 is looking to hire between 20 and 40 people over the course of the next 3 years. 
Our pay scales range from $15.00 per hour to $50.00 per hour. We offer all employees health 
benefits after 60 days and a Simple IRA retirement plan with a match from the company. We 
strive to offer our employees a great long term career path. We also strive to grow from within 
for managerial positions allowing for employees to grow as well.  

 

 

 



 
 pg. 5 

Adaptive Reuse 

The design and location of this facility fits seamlessly with the needs of Restoration 1. There will 
be no demolition or major construction renovation projects needed to begin business. There 
will be slight modifications internally for use, and externally for aesthetics. This will allow for 
minimum disruptions to the surrounding businesses.  

 

Proposed Purchase Price 

$1,000,000.00 

 

Closing of Transaction 

FERDA LLC, once approved for purchase will file with WA Trust Bank to secure financing one of 
three ways. The three options we have is conventional financing (pre-approved), SBA 504 
Program, or SBA 7A Program. We would look to close within 60 days of approval from the 
board. 

 

Prospective Development Timeline  

Once the loan and title work are complete, Restoration 1 of Central WA would occupy the 
space. We can do all improvements while occupying the space. The improvements would take 
between 8 months and 1 year depending on contractor’s schedules, permitting and approvals.  

 

Key Individuals 

Scott and Corinna Whitaker are the principals behind FERDA LLC as well as CENTWA LLC. Scott 
Whitaker started in the carpet cleaning industry in 1996. Since then, Scott and Corinna have 
owned and operated three carpet cleaning businesses as well as two disaster restoration 
companies. Corinna has worked in the back office of all companies while raising 3 young men, 
who are now 19, 19 and 17. Scott has served on the Spokane Valley Fire Department for last 14 
years and is currently a captain looking to retire from the department very soon and continue 
building businesses.  

 



Total Grant Funding Available 18,120,860.00$     

RFR #1 - February 2020 Operations 182,242.32          
RFR #2 - Runway Extension Bonds

POCC 1,728,770.24       
PODC 744,059.70          

RFR #3 - March 2020 Operations 242,778.15          
RFR #4 - CERB Infrastructure

CERB - PABP Phase II 796,749.86          
CERB - South Billingsley - Giga Watt 270,291.41          
CERB - South Billingsley - Salcido 120,953.93          

RFR #5 - Executive Flight Bonds
North Cascades Bank - 2020A 797,742.40          
North Cascades Bank - 2020B 2,072,911.77       

RFR #6 - April 2020 Operations 352,538.14          
RFR #7 - May 2020 Operations 239,448.52          
RFR #8 - June Operations plus debt payments 658,266.91          
RFR #9 - July 2020 Operations 218,864.36          
RFR #10 - PODC Business Park Bonds

CWICC 2013 - callable 318,663.67          
PABP Phase II - callable after 12.01.2021 1,152,746.25       
3310 Purchase - callable after 06.01.2026 4,045,187.50       

RFR #11 - August 2020 Operations 366,624.15          
RFR #12 - September Operations + HVAC 535,824.52          
RFR #13 - October Operations 220,764.54          
RFR #14 - November Operations + HVAC 865,177.39          
RFR #15 - December 2020 Operations 242,680.87          
RFR #16 - January 2021 Operations 279,710.92          
RFR #17 - February 2021 Operations 202,754.12          

     Total Requested as of 04/02/2021 16,655,751.64       

Amount still available 1,465,108.36$       

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
FAA CARES Act Grant #3-53-0084-043-2020

Allocation of Grant



Grant Funds Remaining 04/01/2021 1,465,108.36$    

Executive Flight - HVAC Phase II 650,000.00      
Executive Flight - Meeting Room 280,000.00      
Executive Flight - Carpet Replacement 75,000.00        
CWICC - HVAC 175,000.00      
CWICC - Carpet Replacement 32,000.00        
Fuel Truck 250,000.00      

Total Project Estimates 1,462,000.00      

Remaining for Operations 3,108.36$           

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
FAA CARES Act Grant #3-53-0084-043-2020

Allocation of Remaining Grant Funds









Chelan Douglas Regional 
Port Authority 

 
Memo 

To: Board of Directors  

From: Ron Russ 

cc: Jim Kuntz 

Date: April 7, 2021 

Re: Cashmere Mill District Wetland Management 

 
 
On March 29th, I met with Adam Neff (RH2), Ken Muir (Cascadia 
Conservation District) and Kodi Jo Jaspers (Trout Unlimited) to 
discuss possible short-term and long-term solutions to the intermittent 
flooding from the beaver ponds in Brender Creek. 
 
Prior to the most recent flood events, Ken Muir had contacted the 
CDRPA to gauge our interest in a collaborative restoration project with 
Cascadia Conservation District (CCD) and one of the adjacent 
landowners.  The adjacent landowner has interest in trying to restore 
the portion of the stream that sits on their property and contacted the 
CCD for assistance. 
 
I have concluded that some actions need to be taken in the short-term 
to mitigate the potential for continued flooding during high stream 
flows, including the installation of a new leveler or deceiver in the 
newest beaver dam and reconstructing and reinforcing some of the 
existing deceivers to prevent the beavers from obstructing the pipes. 
 
In support of this effort, RH2 has prepared a Task Authorization to 
provide consultation and design services for a small public works 
project.  The Task Authorization includes the preparation of design 
drawings and cost estimate, technical support for the preparation of a 



Hydraulic Project Authorization, services during construction and 
consultation with Cascadia Conservation District.  Services will be 
provided on a time and expense basis with fees not to exceed $7,209. 
 
Concurrently, Ken Muir has offered to prepare an application for a grant 
from the Chelan County PUD’s Habitat Conservation Plan Tributary 
Funds.  As I understand it, Cascadia Conservation District would be the 
grant recipient, but they could then transfer funding to the CDRPA to 
fund the installation and repair of deceivers.  Ken has also expressed 
an interest in including a request for funding to conduct a 
topographical site survey and hydraulic modeling to gather data for a 
long term restoration plan.  
 
Kodi Jo Jaspers has agreed to assist with beaver trapping and 
relocation.  Trout Unlimited has been trapping and relocating beavers 
in North Central Washington for several years as a means to mitigate 
property damage and enhance fish spawning habitat in upper 
watersheds.  Any beavers removed from our property would be 
transported to the Leavenworth Fish Hatchery temporarily and then 
released in one of the upper tributaries of the Wenatchee River system. 
 
As we have previously discussed, these short-term efforts are primarily 
treating symptoms.  Beaver deceivers will need to be maintained on an 
annual basis and relocating beavers will only reduce the population 
temporarily. 
 
A large scale restoration effort, which may include removal of reed 
canary grass, dredging of the existing pond and/or the installation of 
an overflow channel or berm, would likely reduce the frequency of 
ongoing maintenance, but may not completely eliminate the need. 



1 
4/8/2021 8:39:17 AM Y:\10 - Commission Meetings\2021 Agendas\04-13-2021\VIII. Beavers RH2 Task Authorization.docx 

Task Authorization No. 12 
Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 

General Engineering Services 
Cashmere Mill Site Beaver Mitigation 

April 2021 
RH2 Project No. RPA 20.0026 

 
In accordance with our Professional Services Agreement for the General Engineering Services, dated 
February 19, 2020, this Task Authorization outlines the Scope of Work for Cashmere Mill Site Beaver 
Mitigation. The work will be performed and invoiced in compliance with the terms and conditions 
listed in the governing Agreement and any issued Contract Amendments. 

Scope of Work 
Cascadia Conservation District (Cascadia) has approached the Chelan Douglas Regional Port 
Authority (RPA) about teaming on a project at the Cashmere mill site to alleviate some of the 
wetland impairments and beaver issues that have led to numerous flooding events since 2014.  
 
There are two goals for the project, apply for a short term Hydraulic Project Approval (HPA) to 
address the newest large beaver dam on the site by installing a new pond leveler, and to address 
design/construction deficiencies in the upper most leveler and lower most levelers. To rectify these 
deficiencies the existing inlet and outlet wire cages will be modified to include tops and bottoms to 
impede beaver access into the pipes. The proposed pond leveler will be a modification of the 
existing designs implemented on the site. All specifications will be included in the plans. A 
construction cost estimate will be prepared in conjunction with the design drawings. Cascadia is 
working to obtain funding for this portion of the project.  
 
The project is anticipated to be bid off of the RPA small works roster. RPA will handle all bidding 
and contracting for the actual construction of the proposed improvements. RH2 will assist with 
bidder questions and attend preconstruction meeting. Then will provide 8 hrs of services during 
construction to ensure project installation meeting design drawings and specification.  
 
The broader goal of wetland restoration is also being pursued at the same time.  Cascadia will take 
the lead on this effort though it is assumed that additional assistance will be needed for 
coordination, meetings, and facilitation of additional construction efforts. RH2 will plan on 4 hrs of 
coordination  

Assumptions:   

• Construction documents for the new pond leveler and existing pond leveler modifications 
will be two sheets max.  

• The short-term pond leveler project will move forward independent of Cascadia’s funding 
successes or failures.  

• HPA is the only required permit.  

• 4 hours of coordination meetings, either in-person or web-based.  

• No survey will be required to draft the construction drawings.  



Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority Task Authorization No. 12 
General Engineering Services – Cashmere Mill Site Beaver Mitigation Scope of Work 
 
 

 2 
4/8/21 8:39 AM Y:\10 - Commission Meetings\2021 Agendas\04-13-2021\VIII. Beavers RH2 Task Authorization.docx 

• Any hydraulic modeling or topographic surveys associated with long-term wetland restoration will be 
contracted directly by RPA, Cascadia, or by RH2 under a follow-up Task Authorization. 

Provided by RPA:  

• RPA staff will apply for HPA from WDFW with minimal assistance from RH2. RPA will directly 
pay all permit fee.  

RH2 Deliverables:   

• Construction Cost Estimate 

• Construction Drawings (electronic PDF) and three half-sized hard copies (11x17 inches).  

Project Schedule 
Construction plans will be provided by within 3 weeks of execution of this contract. No schedule is 
provided for project coordination.  

Fee for Services 
The fee for services shall be on a time and expense basis and shall not exceed $7,209.00 as shown 
on attached Exhibit A, Fee Estimate without prior written authorization of Chelan Douglas Regional 
Port Authority.  
 
RH2 Engineering, Inc.  Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 

 
_______________________________________ 
Signature 

  
_______________________________________ 
Signature 

 
_______________________________________ 
Print Name/Title 

  
_______________________________________ 
Print Name/Title 

 
_______________________________________ 
Date  

  
_______________________________________ 
Date  

 



240,000,000$         

1.0405%

2,497,113$             

Current Applications submitted 167 @ 25K each 4,175,000$             

0.5714%

1,371,438$             

775,000$                

Notes

Douglas Co. Population as of 4/1/20 - Office of Financial Management 43,750

Targeted Funding for Douglas County Businesses

Current Applications submitted 31 @ 25K each

Working Washington Round 4

State Population as of 4/1/20 - Office of Financial Management: 7,656,200
Chelan Co. Population as of 4/1/20 - Office of Financial Management 79,660

Targeted Funding for Chelan County Businesses

Total Grant Funding Available Statewide

Chelan County % of State Population

Douglas County % of State Population



Lease Signed Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Term
Base

Rent/Month

3/1/2021 RS Farm Repair
Pangborn Airport - 

3355 SE 2nd St

.62 Acres 
w/3,600 SqFt 

Bldg

3/1/2021 - 2/28/2022; Option to renew 
2/1-yr terms

$2,051.71

3/15/2021
Chelan Douglas Community 

Action Council
Lineage Bldgs G & I 19,560 SqFt

4/1/2021 Month to Month; Replaces 
Lease Entered in November 2020

$8,800.00 

Renewal Signed Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Term
Base

Rent/Month

Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Ending

Eagle Rock Café Airport Terminal Café 2,175 SqFt 3/31/2021

Executive Director's Authority to Sign Leases

Lease terms of five years duration or less.
Lease payments of $5,000 per month or less.

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority - Lease Report
Leases & Renewals - General

Reporting Period - March 2021
4/13/2021

New Leases 

Lease Renewals

Tenants Moving Out

Base
Rent/Month

$350.00 

None to Report this Period



 

Lease Signed Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Term
Base

Rent/Month

3/8/2021 UW - Airlift Northwest
EF Bldg-Add'l Tool 

Storage Area
From 420 SqFt 

to 675 SqFt
2/1/2021 - 6/30/2022 $255.00 

3/12/2021 Rich McDonald
PMA T-Hangar         

C-12
T-Hangar 4/1/2021; Month to Month $210.00 

3/26/2021 Amy L Hoover EF Bldg -Hangar
Hangar + 

Aircraft Service 
Agreement

4/1/2021; Month to Month   $350.00 

3/31/2021 Jason Loewen EF Bldg -Hangar
Hangar + 

Aircraft Service 
Agreement

4/1/2021; Month to Month   $350.00 

Renewal Signed Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Term
Base

Rent/Month

Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Ending

Tammy Donaghue PMA T-Hangar C-12 T-Hangar 3/31/2021

Doug Miller PMA Tie Down Tie Down 3/31/2021

Lease payments of $5,000 per month or less.
Lease terms of five years duration or less.

Executive Director's Authority to Sign Leases

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority - Lease Report
Leases & Renewals - Aviation Related

Reporting Period - March 2021
4/13/2021

New Leases 

Lease Renewals

Tenants Moving Out

Base
Rent/Month

$210.00 

$62.00 

None to Report this Period



Lease Signed Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Term
Base

Rent/Month

Renewal Signed Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Term
Base

Rent/Month

Tenant Building or Land SQFT or Acres Ending

Lease Renewals

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority - Lease Report
Leases & Renewals  - CTC

Reporting Period - March 2021
4/13/2021

New Leases 

None to Report this Period

None to Report this Period

None to Report this Period

Tenants Moving Out

Base
Rent/Month

Executive Director's Authority to Sign Leases

Lease terms of five years duration or less.
Lease payments of $5,000 per month or less.



Actuals
Premiums HRA Total Premiums HRA Total Premiums HRA Total

Administrative & General 108,385$   9,000$       117,385$   126,845$   9,600$   136,445$   132,574$   10,313$   142,887$   

Olds Station Business Park 13,010       1,200         14,210       12,985       1,200     14,185       12,823       -               12,823       

Confluence Technology Center 13,455       1,200         14,655       19,160       1,800     20,960       19,263       -               19,263       

Pangborn Memorial Airport 143,135     11,400       154,535     138,970     10,200   149,170     126,912     1,285       128,197     

Board of Directors 83,165       7,200         90,365       71,605       6,600     78,205       70,593       8,097       78,690       

     TOTALS 391,150$   398,965$   381,860$   

Health Reimbursement Utilization 20.00% 19.60% 13.13%

Supplemental BudgetFinal Budget

Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
Health Insurance Analysis - 2020



Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 
Calendar of Events 4/9/2021

Date Day Event / Location / Time Attending Cami RSVP arrangements if applicable
April 13 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 
April 14 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting
April 22 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 

April 22 Tuesday 
Wenatchee Downtown Assoc. Annual Dinner;  5:30pm; 
Convention Center

April 21 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM
April 27 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

April 28 Wednesday
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 
2:30 pm

May 11 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 
May 12 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting
May 13 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM
May 18 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
May 19 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM
May 19-21 Wed-Friday WPPA Spring Meeting; Virtual
May 20 Thursday GWATA Flywheel; 11:30am - 4pm; details TBD/Hybrid
May 25 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

May 26 Wednesday
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 
2:30 pm

May 31 Monday Memorial Day/Office Closed
June 8 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 
June 9 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting
June 10 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM
June 15 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
June 16 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM
June 16-18 Wed-Friday WPPA Finance Seminar; Alderbrook (tentative)
June 22 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

June 23 Wednesday
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 
2:30 pm

July 5 Monday 4th of July Holiday Observed/Office Closed
July 7-9 Wed-Friday WPPA Director's Seminar; dates and location not firm.
July 8 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM
July 13 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 
July 14 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting



Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 
Calendar of Events 4/9/2021

Date Day Event / Location / Time Attending Cami RSVP arrangements if applicable

July 19-21 Mon-Wednesday
WPPA Commissioner's Seminar; Marcus Whitman Walla 
Walla; tentative

July 20 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
July 21 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM
July 27 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

July 28 Wednesday
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 
2:30 pm

August 10 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 
August 11 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting
August 12 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM
August 17 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
August 18 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM
August 24 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

August 25 Wednesday
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 
2:30 pm

September 6 Monday Labor Day/Office Closed
September 8 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting
September 9 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM
September 14 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 
September 15 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM
September 21 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 

September 22-24 Wed-Friday WPPA Environmental Seminar; Alderbrook;not yet booked
September 28 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

September 29 Wednesday
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 
2:30 pm

October 12 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 
October 13 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting
October 14 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM
October 19 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
October 20 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM

October 20-22 Wed-Friday WPPA Small Ports;Enzian; not yet booked and dates not firm
October 26 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 



Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority 
Calendar of Events 4/9/2021

Date Day Event / Location / Time Attending Cami RSVP arrangements if applicable

October 27 Wednesday
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 
2:30 pm

November 9 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 
November 10 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting
November 16 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
November 17 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM
November 18 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM
November 23 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

November 24 Wednesday
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 
2:30 pm

November 25 Thursday Thanksgiving/Office Closed
November 26 Friday Day After Thanksgiving/Office Closed

December 1-3 Wed-Friday
WPPA Annual Meeting; Hyatt Regency Hotel 
Bellevue;tentative

December 8 Wednesday NCWEDD Meeting
December 9 Thursday CDTC Board Meeting 9:00 AM
December 14 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 
December 15 Wednesday GWATA Board Meeting; 3:00 PM
December 21 Tuesday Wenatchee Chamber Board Meeting; 6:30 am 
December 23 Thursday Christmas Holiday Observed Office Closed
December 24 Friday Christmas Holiday Observed Office Closed
December 28 Tuesday CDRPA Board Meeting; 9:00 AM 

December 29 Wednesday
Douglas County Community Leadership Advisory Committee; 
2:30 pm

December 31 Friday New Years Day Observed/Office Closed


	CDRPA 04-13-2021 Agenda
	Working Together to Enhance the Economic Vitality of North Central Washington
	Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
	Meeting Agenda
	April 13th, 2021


	03-23-2021 Meeting Minutes
	Board of Directors
	Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority
	Meeting Minutes
	March 23rd, 2021


	03-30-2021Tri Commission Meeting Minutes
	Tri-Commission Meeting              Special Meeting Minutes

	2021-07 CDRPA Resolution 2021-07 Voiding Check 7775
	CDRPA Check Register 2021-09 03.15.21
	CDRPA Check Register 2021-10  03.31.21 PR
	CDRPA Check Register 2021-11  03.31.21
	CDRPA Register Page Summary Signed March 2021
	POCC Summary Register (Mar) dated 04.13.21 signed
	VI. 1 Federal Lobbyist Memo
	VI. 2-3-4 Purchasing and Contracting Policy - Memo (002)
	To:
	From:
	cc:
	Date:
	Re:

	VI. 2  CDRPA Resolution 2021-08 Adopting Policies & Procedures to Implement Design Build Contracting
	VI. 3 CDRPA Resolution 2021-09 Adopting Small Works & Contracting Roster Guidelines
	VI. 4 CDRPA Resolution 2021-10 Adopting Purchasing & Contracting Guidelines for Public Works
	VI. 4 b CDRPA Purchasing and Contracting Policy with Exhibits
	VI. 4  b CDRPA Purchasing and Contracting Policy - Final
	Exhibit A
	CDRPA Federal Procurement Standards Policy as EXHIBIT B for Purchasing & Contracting Policy

	VI. 5  First Right to Negotiate Mission Peak Computing
	VI. 6  CWICC Carpet Replacement Bid Tab
	VII. 7 Lineage South Memo for Proposals with Goals
	VII. 7 Lineage South Proposals Memo
	To:
	From:
	Date:
	Re:

	DOC001

	VII. 7 Lineage South Proposal Restoration 1
	VII. 8 a FAA Allocation of Funds - Grant 43 04.02.2021
	Sheet1 (2)

	VII. 8 b FAA Remaining Allocation of Funds - Grant 43 04.02.2021
	Allocation of Remaining Funds

	VII. 9 IB#3 Potential Tenant Lead
	VII. 10 Beavers Cashmere Mill Site Wetland Management
	To:
	From:
	cc:
	Date:
	Re:

	VII. 10 Beavers RH2 Task Authorization
	General Engineering Services
	Cashmere Mill Site Beaver Mitigation
	April 2021
	RH2 Project No. RPA 20.0026
	Scope of Work

	Chelan Douglas Regional Port Authority

	VIII.  WW4 Progress Update
	VIII. March Lease Reporting
	CDRPA 04.13.2021
	Aviation Related 04.13.2021
	CTC 04.13.2021

	VIII.  CDRPA Health Insurance - 2020 Analysis
	Budget vs Actual

	X. CDRPA Event Calendar
	Sheet1




